VISA 2015/97799-4307-0-PC

L'apposition du visa ne peut en aucun cas servir d'argument de publicité
Luxembourg, le 2015-01-16
Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier



PROSPECTUS

relating to the permanent offering and issue of Units in

INCOMETRIC FUND

A mutual investment fund organized under the laws of the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

December 2014

The Units referred to in this prospectus (the "Prospectus") are offered solely on the basis of the information contained herein and in the reports referred to in the Prospectus. In connection with the offer hereby made, no person is authorized to give any information or to make any representations other than those contained in the Prospectus and the documents referred to herein, and any purchase made by any person on the basis of statements or representations not contained in or inconsistent with the information contained in the Prospectus shall be solely at the risk of the purchaser.

The Units have not been registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933 (the "Securities Act"), and the Fund has not been registered under the United States Investment Company Act of 1940. The Units may not be offered, sold, transferred or delivered, directly or indirectly, in the United States, its territories or possessions or to U.S. Persons (as defined in Regulation S under the Securities Act) except to certain qualified U.S. institutions in reliance on certain exemptions from the registration requirements of the Securities Act and with the consent of the Management Company. Neither the Units nor any interest therein may be beneficially owned by any other U.S. Person. The Fund's Management Regulations restrict the sale and transfer of Units to U.S. Persons and the Management Company may repurchase Units held by a U.S. Person or refuse to register any transfer to a U.S. Person as it deems appropriate to assure compliance with the Securities Act. See Heading "Subscription of Units".

The Management Company draws the investors' attention to the fact that any investors will only be able to fully exercise his investor rights directly against the UCITS, in the unitholders' register of the UCITS. In cases where an investor invests in the UCITS through an intermediary investing into the UCITS in his own name but on behalf of the investor, it may not always be possible for the investor to exercise certain unitholder rights directly against the UCITS. Investors are advised to take advice on their rights.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.	OVERVIEW	5
2.	GLOSSARY	
3.	THE FUND	
4.	INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES	
5.	RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS	
6.	RISK CONSIDERATIONS	
7.	MANAGEMENT OF THE FUND	
8.	INVESTMENT MANAGER	
9.	INVESTMENT ADVISOR	
10.	CUSTODIAN, PAYING AGENT, REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT	16
11.	DISTRIBUTORS	17
12.	MANAGEMENT REGULATIONS	17
13.	CO-MANAGEMENT OF ASSETS	18
14.	INVESTMENT RESTRICTIONS	19
15.	SPECIAL INVESTMENT AND HEDGING TECHNIQUES AND INSTRUMENTS	27
16.	EFFICIENT PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT TECHNIQUES AND INSTRUMENT	S.28
17.	CROSS INVESTMENTS AND MASTER FEEDER	32
18.	MONEY LAUNDERING PREVENTION	32
19.	UNITS	33
20.	SUBSCRIPTION OF UNITS	34
21.	REDEMPTION OF UNITS	35
22.	CONVERSION OF UNITS	37
23.	LATE TRADING AND MARKET TIMING	38
24.	DETERMINATION OF THE NET ASSET VALUE OF UNITS	39
25.	SUSPENSION OF THE NET ASSET VALUE OF UNITS	42
26.	FEES AND EXPENSES	43
27.	AUDITORS	47

28.	DIVIDENDS	47
29.	DURATION, LIQUIDATION AND AMALGAMATION OF THE FUND OR	OF ANY
SUB-	-FUND	47
30.	APPLICABLE LAW AND JURISDICTION	49
31.	GOVERNING LANGUAGE	49
32.	TAX STATUS IN LUXEMBOURG	49
33.	ACCOUNTING YEAR	51
34.	UNITHOLDERS' INFORMATION	52
35.	SPECIAL DERIVATIVE RISK FACTORS	52
36.	DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION	53
37.	APPENDICES TO THE PROSPECTUS	55

1. OVERVIEW

FUND

INCOMETRIC FUND

6A, rue Gabriel Lippmann

L -5365 Munsbach

Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

MANAGEMENT COMPANY AND CENTRAL ADMINISTRATION

ADEPA Asset Management S.A.

6A, rue Gabriel Lippmann

L -5365 Munsbach

Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD

Carlos Alberto Morales López, Director

ADEPA Asset Management S.A., Managing Director, 6A, rue Gabriel Lippmann, L -5365 Munsbach, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

Jean-Noël Lequeue, Director

ADEPA Asset Management S.A., Director, 6A, rue Gabriel Lippmann, L -5365 Munsbach, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

Philippe Beckers, Director

ADEPA Asset Management S.A., Director, 6A, rue Gabriel Lippmann, L -5365 Munsbach, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

CUSTODIAN AND PAYING AGENT

KBL European Private Bankers S.A.

Boulevard Royal 43,

L-2955 Luxembourg,

Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg

REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT

Kredietrust Luxembourg S.A.,

11, rue Aldringen

L-2960 Luxembourg

Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg

AUDITORS

BDO Audit, S.A.
2, avenue Charles de Gaulle
L-1653 Luxembourg
Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg

LEGAL ADVISERS IN LUXEMBOURG

Kremer Associés & Clifford Chance 10, Boulevard Grande-Duchesse Charlotte L-1011 Luxembourg Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg

2. GLOSSARY

Business Day – a full day on which banks and the stock exchange are open for business in Luxembourg City

Category – group of units of each Class, which are sub-divided into accumulation of income or distribution of dividends

Class – group of units of each Sub-Fund which may differ, inter alia, in respect of their specific denominated currency, charging structures or other specific features

Custodian - KBL European Private Bankers S.A.

EU – the European Union

Euro or EUR – the single currency of the member states of the Economic and Monetary Union. As of the date of the current Prospectus, the Euro is officially the common currency unit for the following countries: Austria, Belgium, Cyprus, Estonia, Finland, France, Germany, Greece, Ireland, Italy, Luxembourg, Malta, Portugal, Slovakia, Slovenia, Spain and The Netherlands

Fund – a Luxembourg fonds commun de placement as more fully described below in the section entitled "The Fund", known as "INCOMETRIC FUND"

Group of Companies — companies belonging to the same body of undertakings and which must draw up consolidated accounts in accordance with Council Directive 83/349/EEC of 13 June 1983 on consolidated accounts or according to recognized international accounting rules

Institutional Investor – institutional investors, as defined by guidelines or recommendations issued by the Regulatory Authority from time to time

Investment Manager – any entity appointed by the Management Company to make discretionary investments with respect to the investment and reinvestment of the assets of one or several Sub-Funds.

Law of 2010 – the Luxembourg law of 17 December 2010 on undertakings for collective investment, as may be amended from time to time

Management Company – ADEPA Asset Management S.A.

Management Regulations – management regulations of the Fund dated 18 April 2006, as amended from time to time

Member State – a member state of the European Union

Mémorial – the Mémorial C, Recueil des Sociétés et Associations

Money Market Instruments – instruments normally dealt in on the money market which are liquid, and have a value which can be accurately determined at any time

Net Asset Value – the net asset value, issue price, repurchase and conversion price per Unit of the relevant Sub-Fund as determined in the Reference Currency on each Valuation Day in accordance with the section below entitled "Determination of the Net Asset Value of Units"

OTC - Over the Counter

Reference Currency – the currency in which the Fund or each Sub-Fund is denominated

Regulated Market – a regulated market as defined in the Council Directive 93/22/EEC of 10 May 1993 on investment services in the securities field ("Directive 93/22/EEC")

Regulatory Authority – the Luxembourg authority or its successor in charge of the supervision of the undertakings for collective investment in the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

Sub-Fund –a separate portfolio of assets within the Fund

Sub-Investment Manager—any entity appointed from time to time by the Investment Manager

Transferable Securities – (i) shares in companies and other securities equivalent to shares in companies ("shares"); (ii) bonds and other forms of securitised debt ("debt securities") and (iii) any other negotiable securities which carry the right to acquire any such transferable securities by subscription or exchange, to the extent they do not qualify as techniques and instruments as described hereafter

UCI – an undertaking for collective investment as defined by Luxembourg law

UCITS – an undertaking for collective investment in transferable securities under Article 1(2) of the UCITS Directive

UCITS Directive – Directive 2009/65/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of July 2009, on the coordination of laws, regulations and administrative provisions relating to undertakings for collective investment in transferable securities (UCITS)

Unitholder – owner of Units

Units – each unit within any Sub-Fund

Valuation Day – each Business Day in Luxembourg, on which the Net Asset Value per Unit of the Sub-Funds is calculated according to the Appendices

3. THE FUND

The Fund is organized in and under the laws of the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg as a mutual investment fund ("fonds commun de placement") with separate Sub-Fund(s) constituting each a separate portfolio of assets and liabilities.

The Fund is registered pursuant to Part I of the Law of 2010. However such registration does not require any Luxembourg authority to approve or disapprove either the adequacy or accuracy of the Prospectus or the assets held in the various Sub-Funds. Any representations to the contrary are unauthorized and unlawful.

In accordance with the Management Regulations, the board of directors of the Management Company may issue Units in each Sub-Fund. A separate pool of assets is maintained for each Sub-Fund and is invested in accordance with the investment objectives applicable to the relevant Sub-Fund. As a result, the Fund is an "umbrella fund" enabling investors to choose between one or more investment objectives by investing in one or more Sub-Funds. Investors may choose which Sub-Fund(s) may be most appropriate for their specific risk and return expectations as well as their diversification needs.

Each Sub-Fund is treated as a separate entity and operates independently, each portfolio of assets being invested for the exclusive benefit of this Sub-Fund. A purchase of Units relating to one particular Sub-Fund does not give the holder of such Units any rights with respect to any other Sub-Fund.

The net proceeds from the subscription to each Sub-Fund are invested in the specific portfolio of assets constituting that Sub-Fund.

With regard to third parties, each Sub-Fund will be exclusively responsible for all liabilities attributable to it.

The specific investment policy and features of the Sub-Funds are described in detail in the Appendices below.

The board of directors of the Management Company may, at any time, create additional Sub-Funds. In that event the Prospectus will be updated accordingly.

Furthermore, in respect of each Sub-Fund, the board of directors of the Management Company may decide to issue one or more Classes of Units, each Class having e.g. a specific sales and redemption charge structure, a specific management fee structure, different distribution, Unitholders servicing or other fees, different types of targeted investors, different currencies and/or such other features as may be determined by the board of directors of the Management Company from time to time. The currency in which the Classes of Units are denominated may differ from the Reference Currency of the relevant Sub-Fund. The Management Company may, at the expense of the relevant Class of Units, use instruments such as forward currency contracts to hedge the exposure of the investments denominated in other currencies than the currency in which the relevant Class of Units is denominated.

The Classes of Units will be sub-divided into two Categories: accumulation of income and distribution of income.

The Classes of Units and their Categories for each Sub-Fund are indicated in the relevant Appendix.

The amounts invested in the various Classes of Units of each Sub-Fund are themselves invested in a common underlying portfolio of investments. The Management Company may decide to create further Classes of Units with different characteristics and, in such case, this Prospectus will be updated accordingly.

Units of different Classes within each Sub-Fund may be issued, redeemed and converted at prices computed on the basis of the Net Asset Value per Unit, within the relevant Sub-Fund, as defined in the Management Regulations.

The Fund is managed in the interest of its Unitholders by the Management Company, a public limited company ("société anonyme") incorporated under the laws of Luxembourg and having its registered office in Munsbach, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg.

The assets of the Fund are separate from those of the Management Company and from those of other funds managed by the Management Company.

The Management Company manages the assets of the Fund in accordance with the Management Regulations effective on 18 April 2006. The Management Regulations are deposited with the *Registre de Commerce et des Sociétés Luxembourg*, where they may be inspected and copies may be obtained. A notice advising of the publication and deposit of the Management Regulations with the registry was published in the *Mémorial* of 15 June 2006.

4. INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

4.1 Investment Objective of the Fund

The purpose of the Fund is to provide investors with an opportunity for investment in a professionally managed mutual investment fund in order to achieve an optimum return from the capital invested.

The Fund will seek to achieve its objective, in accordance with the policies and guidelines established by the board of directors of the Management Company.

For this purpose the Fund offers a choice of Sub-Funds as described in the Appendices, which allow investors to make their own strategic allocation.

4.2 Investment Objectives and Policies of the Sub-Funds

The board of directors of the Management Company has determined the investment objective and policies of each Sub-Fund as described in the Appendix. There can be no

assurance that the investment objective for any Sub-Fund will be attained. Pursuit of the investment objective and policies of any Sub-Fund must be in compliance with the rules and restrictions set forth under sections "Investment Restrictions" and "Special Investment and Hedging Techniques and Instruments" below.

The Fund may hold cash, in each Sub-Fund, on an ancillary basis.

For hedging purposes, the Fund may, in each Sub-Fund, employ techniques and instruments relating to Transferable Securities and Money Market Instruments. The Fund may also employ techniques and instruments relating to Transferable Securities, Money Market Instruments and other financial liquid assets for efficient portfolio management. All revenues arising from such techniques are fully returned to the Fund, net of direct and indirect operational costs resulting from it.

Pursuant to CSSF Circular 14/592, the Fund is able to recall any securities and cash amounts lent or that are subject to a repurchase/reverse repurchase agreement, or to terminate any securities lending agreement or repurchase/reverse repurchase agreement into it has entered.

See "Risk Considerations" for a discussion of certain factors in connection with an investment in the relevant Sub-Funds.

5. RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

The Management Company has established and will use a risk-management process that enables it to monitor and measure at any time the risk of the Sub-Funds' portfolio positions and their contribution to the overall risk profile of the portfolio. If applicable, it will employ a process allowing for accurate and independent assessment of the value of OTC derivative instruments.

Where applicable, the Management Company shall ensure that the Sub-Funds' global exposure relating to derivative instruments does not exceed the total net value of its portfolio. The risk exposure is calculated taking into account the current value of the underlying assets, the counterparty risk, future market movements and the time available to liquidate the positions.

Unless otherwise indicated in a Sub-Fund's Appendix, the Fund employs the Commitment Approach as the global exposure determination methodology.

6. RISK CONSIDERATIONS

6.1 General

Despite the possibility for the Fund to use option, futures and swap contracts and to enter into forward foreign exchange transactions with the aim to hedge exchange rate risks, all Sub-Funds are subject to market or currency fluctuations, and to the risks inherent in all investments. Therefore, no assurance can be given that the invested capital will be preserved, or that capital appreciation will occur.

6.2 Exchange Rates

The currency in which the Classes of Units of each Sub-Fund is denominated is not necessarily the Reference Currency of the relevant Sub-Fund or the investment currency of the Sub-Fund concerned. Investments are made in those currencies that best benefit the performance of the Sub-Funds in the view of the Investment Manager.

Changes in foreign currency exchange rates may affect the value of Units held in the Sub-Funds.

Unitholders investing in a Sub-Fund other than in the currency in which the relevant Class of Units is denominated should be aware that exchange rate fluctuations could cause the value of their investment to diminish or increase.

6.3 Interest Rates

The value of fixed income securities held by the Sub-Funds generally will vary inversely with changes in interest rates and such variation may affect Unit prices accordingly.

6.4 Equity Securities

The value of a Sub-Fund that invests in equity securities will be affected by changes in the stock markets and changes in the value of individual portfolio securities. At times, stock markets and individual securities can be volatile and prices can change substantially in short periods of time. The equity securities of smaller companies are more sensitive to these changes than those of larger companies. This risk will affect the value of such Sub-Funds, which will fluctuate as the value of the underlying equity securities fluctuates.

6.5 Investments in other UCI and/or UCITS

The value of an investment represented by a UCI in which the Fund invests, may be affected by fluctuations in the currency of the country where such UCI invests, or by foreign exchange rules, the application of the various tax laws of the relevant countries, including withholding taxes, government changes or variations of the monetary and economic policy of the relevant countries. Furthermore, it is to be noted that the Net Asset Value per Unit will fluctuate mainly in light of the net asset value of the targeted UCIs.

6.6 Duplication of fees

There shall be duplication of management fees and other operating fund related expenses, each time the Fund invests in other UCIs and/or UCITS. The maximum proportion of management fees charges both to the Fund itself and to the UCIs and/or UCITS in which the Fund invests shall be disclosed in the annual report of the Fund.

There will be no subscription and redemption fees on account of the Fund's investment in the units of such other UCIs and/or UCITS when the Fund invests in units of other UCITS and/or other UCIs that are managed, directly or by delegation, by the Management Company or by any other company with which the Company is linked by common management or control, or by a substantial direct or indirect holding.

6.7 Emerging Markets

Potential investors should note that investments in emerging markets carry risks additional to those inherent in other investments. In particular, potential investors should note that investment in any emerging market carries a higher risk than investment in a developed market; emerging markets may afford a lower level of legal protection to investors; some countries may place controls on foreign ownership; and some countries may apply accounting standards and auditing practices which do not necessarily conform with internationally accepted accounting principles.

6.8 Options, Futures and Swaps

Each of the Sub-Funds may use options, futures and swap contracts and enter into forward foreign exchange transactions to the extent allowed in the "Investment Restrictions" and "Special Investment and Hedging Techniques and Instruments" section and in accordance with the investment policy of the Sub-Funds. The ability to use these strategies may be limited by market conditions and regulatory limits and there can be no assurance that the objective sought to be attained from the use of these strategies will be achieved. Participation in the options or futures markets, in swap contracts and in foreign exchange transactions involves investment risks and transaction costs to which the Sub-Funds would not be subject if they did not use these strategies. If the Sub-Funds Investment Manager's predictions of movements in the direction of the securities, foreign currency and interest rate markets are inaccurate, the adverse consequences to a Sub-Fund may leave the Sub-Fund in a less favourable position than if such strategies were not used.

Risks inherent in the use of options, foreign currency, swaps and futures contracts and options on futures contracts include, but are not limited to (a) dependence on the Investment Manager's ability to predict correctly movements in the direction of interest rates, securities prices and currency markets; (b) imperfect correlation between the price of options and futures contracts and options thereon and movements in the prices of the securities or currencies being hedged; (c) the fact that skills needed to use these strategies are different from those needed to select portfolio securities; (d) the possible absence of a liquid secondary market for any particular instrument at any time; and (e) the possible inability of a Sub-Fund to purchase or sell a portfolio security at a time that otherwise would be favourable for it to do so, or the possible need for a Sub-Fund to sell a portfolio security at a disadvantageous time.

Where a Sub-Fund enters into swap transactions it is exposed to a potential counterparty risk. In case of insolvency or default of the swap counterparty, such event would affect the assets of the Sub-Fund.

Any Fund's assets entering into a total return swap or in similar derivative instruments will comply with the diversification limits set out in articles 43, 44, 45, 46 and 48 of the Law of 2010. The corresponding underlying exposures of such instruments are taken into account to calculate the investment limits laid down in the before mentioned article 43.

Please see Sections "Special Derivative Risk Factors", "Investment Restrictions" and "Special Investment and Hedging Techniques and Instruments" hereafter for more information.

7. MANAGEMENT OF THE FUND

7.1 General information

ADEPA Asset Management S.A. is the Management Company of the Fund. The Management Company will manage the assets of the Fund in compliance with the Management Regulations in its own name, but for the sole benefit of the Unitholders of the Fund.

The Management Company is organised as a public limited liability company ("société anonyme") under the laws of the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg. It was established on 9 March 2006 for an unlimited period of time. The articles of incorporation of the Management Company were published in the Mémorial of 23 March 2006 and deposited with the Registre de Commerce et des Sociétés, Luxembourg on 15 March 2006, where they may be inspected and copies may be obtained.

The Management Company has its registered office in Munsbach.

In compliance with the provisions of Chapter 15 of the Law of 2010 and the CSSF Circular 12/546, the effective conduct of the business of the Management Company has been granted to delegates of the board of directors of the Management Company as mentioned in the Prospectus.

7.2 Functions

In compliance with the provisions of Chapter 15 of the Law of 2010, the Management Company provides the following services:

- > Determination of the investment policy of each Sub-Fund within the objectives and the restrictions set forth in the Management Regulations;
- > Investment management (including investment advice; conclusion of agreements; purchase, sale, exchange or delivery of all kind of transferable securities and/or other acceptable types of assets; exercise of all voting rights pertaining to securities of UCITS and UCIs under management);
- Administrative services such as legal and fund management and accounting services, customer inquiries, valuation of the portfolio and pricing of the units (including tax returns), regulatory compliance monitoring, maintenance of the

register of unit holders, distribution of income, and issuing and redemption of units, contract settlements (including certificate dispatch), record keeping of transactions; and

> Marketing and distribution in Luxembourg and/or abroad of units or shares of UCITS and/or UCI.

The Management Company may delegate to third parties, for the purpose of a more efficient conduct of their business, the power to carry out on its behalf one or more of its functions in compliance with the Management Regulations and the provisions of Chapter 15 of the Law of 2010.

8. INVESTMENT MANAGER

The Management Company may appoint any entity to act as investment manager and make, subject to the overall control and ultimate responsibility of the Management Company, discretionary investments with respect to the investment and reinvestment of the assets of each Sub-Fund. In such case, this Prospectus will be updated accordingly.

The Investment Manager makes the investment decisions for each Sub-Fund and places purchase and sale orders for the Sub-Fund's transactions. As permitted by applicable laws, these orders may be directed to brokers, including the Investment Manager's affiliates. The Investment Manager draws upon the research and expertise of its asset management affiliates for portfolio decisions and management with respect to certain Fund securities.

Subject to its overall responsibility, control, and supervision, the Investment Manager may, at its own charge and with the prior approval of the Management Company, delegate the management of other investment strategies relating to the Fund or any Sub-Fund to a Sub-Investment Manager.

The Investment Manager will be paid by the Management Company out of the management fees as agreed between themselves.

9. INVESTMENT ADVISOR

Subject to the overall control and ultimate responsibility of the Management Company, the Management Company or the Investment Manager, subject to the prior consent of the Management Company, may appoint an investment adviser to provide day-to-day advice regarding the Sub-Funds' transactions.

The investment advisor will be paid by the Management Company out of the management fees as agreed between themselves.

10. CUSTODIAN, PAYING AGENT, REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT

The Management Company has appointed KBL European Private Bankers S.A. with registered office at Boulevard Royal 43, L-2955 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg as custodian of the Fund's assets.

As custodian of the Fund, KBL European Private Bankers S.A. (the "Custodian") carries out the usual duties regarding custody, cash and securities deposits, without any restriction. In particular, and upon the instructions of the Management Company, it will execute all financial transactions and provide all banking facilities. The Custodian will further, in accordance with the Law of 2010 be entrusted with the custody of the assets of the Fund and shall carry out all operations concerning the day-to-day administration of the assets of the Fund. The Custodian must moreover:

- > Ensure that the sale, issue, repurchase, conversion and cancellation of Units effected on behalf of the Fund or by the Management Company are carried out in accordance with the law and the Management Regulations;
- > Ensure that the value of Units is calculated in accordance with the law and the Management Regulations;
- > Carry out the instructions of the Management Company, unless they conflict with the law or the Management Regulations;
- > Ensure that in transactions involving the assets of the Fund, the consideration is remitted to it within the usual time limits provided in the Management Regulations;
- > Ensure that the income of the Fund is applied in accordance with the Management Regulations.

The Custodian shall assume its functions and responsibilities in accordance with the Law of 2010.

Each of the Custodian or the Management Company may terminate the appointment of the Custodian at any time upon ninety (90) days' written notice delivered by either to the other, provided, however, that any termination by the Management Company is subject to the condition that a successor custodian assumes within two months the responsibilities and the functions of the Custodian under these Management Regulations and provided, further, that the duties of the Custodian hereunder shall, in the event of a termination by the Management Company, continue thereafter for such period as may be necessary to allow for the transfer of all assets of the Fund to the successor custodian.

In the event of the Custodian's resignation, the Management Company shall as soon as possible and in any case not later than two months after the termination, appoint a successor custodian who shall assume the responsibilities and functions of the Custodian under these Management Regulations.

The Management Company has further appointed KBL European Private Bankers S.A. as paying agent responsible for the payment of distributions, if any, payment of the redemption price by the Fund;

The Management Company has delegated a portion of its duties, with the prior approval of the Board of Directors, to Kredietrust Luxembourg S.A, having its registered office at 11, rue Aldringen, L-2960 Luxembourg Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg, which has been appointed to provide registrar and transfer agent services to the Fund and is in charge for the processing of the issue, redemption and conversion of Shares. Kredietrust Luxembourg S.A is empowered to delegate, under its full responsibility, all or part of its duties to a third Luxembourg entity, with the prior consent of the Management Company.

11. DISTRIBUTORS

The Management Company may appoint any entity as Distributor (the "Distributor") for the distribution of Units in all countries in which the offering and selling of such Units is permitted without prejudice to the right for the Management Company to control the overall distribution in certain countries.

The Distributors may appoint sub-distributors (each a "Sub-distributor") from time to time. The duties of the Distributors and Sub-distributors, if applicable, shall be limited to passing the application for subscription, redemption and conversion orders to the Fund's Registrar and transfer agent in Luxembourg. The Distributors and Sub-distributors, if applicable, may not offset the orders received or carry out any duties connected to the individual processing of the subscription, redemption and conversion orders.

Investors should be aware that subscriptions for Units and requests for redemptions or conversions may either be made through the Distributors or directly through the Fund.

12. MANAGEMENT REGULATIONS

By acquiring Units in the Fund, every Unitholder approves and fully accepts that the Management Regulations shall govern the relationship between the Unitholders, the Management Company and the Custodian.

Subject to the approval of the Custodian, the Management Regulations may be amended by the Management Company at any time, in whole or in part. Amendments will become effective as per the date of their signature by the Management Company and the Custodian.

While managing the assets of the Fund, the Management Company, or its appointed agents, shall, as provided in the Management Regulations, comply with the restrictions mentioned in the following section.

13. CO-MANAGEMENT OF ASSETS

The Management Company may choose to co-manage the assets of certain Sub-Funds of the Fund on a pooled basis. In these cases, assets of the Sub-Funds participating in the co-management process will be managed according to a common investment objective and shall be referred to as a "pool". These pools are used for internal management efficiency purposes or to reduce management costs.

The pools do not constitute separate legal entities and are not directly accessible to investors. Cash, or other assets, may be allocated from one or more Sub-Funds into one or more of the pools established by the Management Company. Further allocations may be made, from time to time, thereafter. Transfers from the pool(s) back to the Sub-Funds may only be made up to the amount of that Sub-Fund's participation in the pool(s).

The proportion of any Sub-Fund's participation in a particular pool shall be measured by reference to its initial allocation of cash and/or other assets to such a pool and, on an ongoing basis, according to adjustments made for further allocations or withdrawals.

The entitlement of each Sub-Fund participating in the pool, to the co-managed assets applies proportionally to each and every single asset of such pool.

Where the Management Company, on behalf of the Fund, incurs a liability relating to any asset of a particular pool or to any action taken in connection with an asset of a particular pool, such liability is allocated to the relevant pool. Assets or liabilities of the Fund, with respect to each Sub-Fund, which cannot be attributed to a particular pool, are allocated to the Sub-Fund they belong or relate to.

Upon dissolution of the pool, the pool's assets and/or liabilities will be allocated to the Sub-Fund(s) in proportion to its/their participation in the pool.

Dividends, interest, and other distributions of an income of any nature earned in respect of the assets of a particular pool will be immediately credited to the Sub-Funds in proportion to its respective participation in the pool at the time such income is recorded.

Expenses directly attributable to a particular pool will be recorded as a charge to that pool and, where applicable, will be allocated to the Sub-Funds in proportion to their respective participation in the pool at the time such expense is incurred. Expenses, that are not attributable to a particular pool, will be charged to the relevant Sub-Fund(s).

In the books and accounts of the Fund the assets and liabilities of a Sub-Fund, whether participating or not in a pool, will, at all times, be identified or identifiable as an asset or liability of the Sub-Fund concerned including, as the case may be, between two accounting periods a proportionate entitlement of a Sub-Fund to a given asset. Accordingly such assets can, at any time, be segregated. On the Custodian's records

for the Sub-Fund such assets and liabilities shall also be identified as a given Sub-Fund's assets and liabilities and, accordingly, segregated on the Custodian's books.

14. INVESTMENT RESTRICTIONS

The board of directors of the Management Company shall, based upon the principle of risk spreading, have power to determine the investment policy for the investments for each Sub-Fund of the Fund.

Except to the extent that more restrictive rules are provided for in connection with a specific Sub-Fund as described in the Appendix below, the investment policy shall comply with the rules and restrictions laid down hereafter:

1) The Fund may invest in:

- a) Transferable Securities and Money Market Instruments admitted to or dealt in on a Regulated Market;
- b) Transferable Securities and Money Market Instruments dealt in on another regulated market in a Member State of the European Union which operates regularly and is recognised and open to the public;
- c) Transferable Securities and Money Market Instruments admitted to official listing on a stock exchange in a non-Member State of the European Union or dealt in on another regulated market in a non-Member State of the European Union which operates regularly and is recognised and open to the public;
- d) Recently issued Transferable Securities and Money Market Instruments provided that:
 - > The terms of issue include an undertaking that application will be made for admission to official listing on a stock exchange or to another regulated market referred to under a), b) and c) above; and
 - > Such admission is secured within one year of the issue;
- e) Shares or units of UCITS authorized according to the UCITS Directive and/or other UCI within the meaning of the first and second indent of Article 1(2) of the UCITS Directive, should they be situated in a Member State of the European Union or not, provided that:
 - Such other UCIs are authorized under laws which provide that they are subject to supervision considered by the CSSF to be equivalent to that laid down in Community law, and that cooperation between authorities is sufficiently ensured;

- > The level of guaranteed protection for share- or unit-holders in such other UCIs is equivalent to that provided for share- or unit-holders in a UCITS, and in particular that the rules on asset segregation, borrowing, lending and uncovered sales of Transferable Securities and Money Market Instruments are equivalent to the requirements of the UCITS Directive;
- > The business of the other UCI is reported in at least half-yearly and annual reports to enable an assessment to be made of the assets and liabilities, income and operations over the reporting period;
- No more than 10% of the UCITS or the other UCI assets, whose acquisition is contemplated, can be, according to its instruments of incorporation, invested in aggregate in shares or units of other UCITS or other UCIs:
- > The Sub-Funds may not invest in units of other UCITS or other UCIs for more than 10% of their assets, unless otherwise provided in respect of a particular Sub-Fund in the relevant Appendix.
- f) Deposits with credit institutions which are repayable on demand or have the right to be withdrawn, and maturing in no more than 12 months, provided that the credit institution has its registered office in a Member State of the European Union or, if the registered office of the credit institution is situated in a country included in the Zone A, as defined under definition 24 of Part I of the CSSF Circular letter 2000/10, as amended (or by any regulation replacing this provision);
- g) Financial derivatives, including options, futures and options on futures, equivalent cash settled instruments, dealt in on a regulated market referred to under a), b) and c) above, and/or financial derivative instruments dealt in over-the-counter ("OTC derivatives"), provided that:
 - > The underlying consist of instruments covered by this Section 1, financial indices, interest rates, foreign exchange rates or currencies, in which the Sub-Fund may invest in accordance with its investment objectives;
 - The counterparties to OTC derivative transactions are institutions subject to prudential supervision, and belonging to the categories approved by the CSSF; and
 - > OTC derivatives are subject to reliable and verifiable valuation on a daily basis and can be sold, liquidated or closed by an offsetting transaction at any time at their fair market value at the Fund's initiative;
- h) Money market instruments other than those dealt in on Regulated Markets or other regulated markets referred to in a), b) and c) and other than Money Market Instruments, if the issue or issuer of such instruments

is itself regulated for the purpose of protecting investors and savings, and provided that they are:

- Issued or guaranteed by a central, regional or local authority, a central bank of a Member State, the European Central Bank, the European Union or the European Investment Bank, a non-Member State or, in the case of a Federal State, by one of the members making up the federation, or by a public international body to which one or more Member States belong; or
- > Issued by an undertaking any securities of which are dealt in on Regulated Markets or other regulated markets referred to under a), b) or c) above; or
- > Issued or guaranteed by an establishment subject to prudential supervision, in accordance with criteria defined by Community law or by an establishment which is subject to and complies with prudential rules considered by the CSSF to be at least as stringent as those laid down by Community law; or
- > Issued by other bodies belonging to the categories approved by the CSSF provided that investments in such instruments are subject to investor protection equivalent to that laid down in the first, second and third indent of this Section 1 h), and provided that the issuer (i) is a company whose capital and reserves amount at least to ten million Euro (EUR 10,000,000) and (ii) which presents and publishes its annual accounts in accordance with Directive 78/660/EEC, (iii) is an entity which, within a Group of Companies which includes one or several listed companies, is dedicated to the financing of the group, or (iv) is an entity which is dedicated to the financing of securitisation vehicles which benefit from a banking liquidity line.

2) Moreover, in each Sub-Fund the Fund may:

- a) Invest up to 10% of the net assets of each of the Sub-Funds in transferable securities and money market instruments other than those referred to under Section 1) a) through h) above, except into those referred in Section 1) e).
- b) Hold, on an ancillary basis, cash and other cash-equivalent instruments.
- c) Borrow the equivalent of up to 10% of its net assets provided that the borrowing is on a temporary basis. Commitments in connection with options and the purchase and sale of futures are not taken into consideration when calculating the investment limit.
- d) Acquire foreign currencies by means of back-to-back loans.

3) In addition, the Fund shall comply in respect of the net assets of each Sub-Fund with the following investment restrictions per issuer:

(a) Rules for risk spreading

For the calculation of the limits defined in points (1) to (5) and (7) below, companies belonging to the same Group of Companies shall be treated as a single issuer.

Insofar as an issuer is a legal entity with several Sub-Funds where the assets of a given Sub-Fund are exclusively subject to the rights of investors in such Sub-Fund and of creditors with a claim arising from the creation, operation or liquidation of said Sub-Fund, each Sub-Fund must be considered a separate issuer for the application of the risk division rules.

Transferable Securities and Money Market Instruments

- (1) A Sub-Fund may not buy additional Transferable Securities and Money Market Instruments from one and the same issuer if, after their purchase:
 - (i) more than 10% of its net assets are Transferable Securities or Money Market Instruments issued by said entity;
 - (ii) the total value of the Transferable Securities and Money Market Instruments from issuers in each of which it invests more than 5% of its net assets exceeds 40% of its net assets. This limit does not apply to deposits with financial institutions subject to prudential supervision or to transactions with such institutions involving OTC derivatives.
- (2) The 10% limit laid down in paragraph (1) is raised to 20% in the case of Transferable Securities and Money Market Instruments issued by the same Group of Companies.
- (3) The 10% limit laid down in paragraph (1) is raised to a maximum of 35% if the Transferable Securities or Money Market Instruments are issued or guaranteed by a Member State of the European Union, by its local authorities, by a non-Member State or by public international bodies to which one or more Member States are members.
- (4) The 10% limit laid down in paragraph (1) is raised to 25% for certain debt securities issued by a credit institution whose registered office is in a Member State of the European Union and which is subject by law to special public supervision designed to protect the holders of debt securities. In particular, sums deriving from the issue of such debt securities must be invested pursuant to the law in assets which, during the whole period of validity of the debt securities, are capable of covering claims attaching to the debt securities and which, in event of bankruptcy of the issuer, would be used on a priority basis for the reimbursement of the principal and payment of accrued interest. To the extent that the Sub-Fund invests more than 5% of its assets in such debt securities, issued by the same issuer, the total value of such investments may not exceed 80% of the value of the Sub-Fund's net assets.

- (5) The values mentioned in (3) and (4) above are not taken into account for the purpose of applying the 40% limit referred to under paragraph (1) (ii) above.
- (6) Notwithstanding the limits indicated above, and in accordance with the principle of risk-spreading, each Sub-Fund is authorised to invest up to 100% of its assets in Transferable Securities and Money Market Instruments issued or guaranteed by a Member State of the European Union, its local authorities, the OECD Members States Singapore, Brazil, Russia, Indonesia and South-Africa, or public international bodies of which one or more Member States of the European Union are members, provided that (i) these securities consist of at least six different issues and (ii) securities from any one issue may not account for more than 30% of the Sub-Fund's net assets.
- (7) Without prejudice to the limits laid down in (b) below, the limits laid down in (1) above are raised to maximum 20% for investment in shares and/or debt securities issued by the same body and when the Sub-Fund's investment policy is aimed at duplicating the composition of a certain stock or debt securities index, which is recognised by the CSSF and meets the following criteria:
 - The index's composition is sufficiently diversified;
 - The index represents an adequate benchmark for the market to which it refers;
 - > The index is published in an appropriate manner.

The 20% limit is increased to 35% where that proves to be justified by exceptional conditions, in particular in Regulated Markets where certain Transferable Securities or Money Market Instruments are highly dominant. The investment up to this limit is only permitted for one single issuer.

Bank deposits

(8) A Sub-Fund may not invest more than 20% of its net assets in deposits made with the same entity.

Derivatives

- (9) The risk exposure to a counterparty in an OTC derivative transaction may not exceed 10% of the Sub-Fund's net assets when the counterparty is a credit institution referred to in f) in Section 1 above, or 5% of its net assets in the other cases.
- (10) The Sub-Fund may invest in financial derivative instruments provided that the exposure to the underlying assets does not exceed in aggregate the investment limits laid down in (1) to (5), (8), (9), (16) and (17). When the Sub-Fund invests in index-based financial derivative instruments, these investments do not have to be combined with the limits laid down in (1) to (5), (8), (9), (16) and (17).

- (11) When a Transferable Security or Money Market Instrument embeds a derivative, the latter must be taken into account when complying with the requirements of article 42 of the Law of 2010 to determine the risks arising on transactions in derivative instruments.
- (12) With regard to derivative instruments, each Sub-Fund will ensure that its global exposure relating to derivative instruments does not exceed the total net value of its portfolio.

The risks exposure is calculated taking into account the current value of the underlying assets, the counterparty risk, future market movements and the time available to liquidate the positions.

Except if otherwise provided in the relevant Appendix with respect to a particular Sub-Fund, derivative instruments will only be used for hedging purposes.

Shares or units in open-ended funds

- (13) Each Sub-Fund may not invest more than 20% of its net assets in shares or units of a single UCITS or other UCI referred to in 1) e) above.
- (14) Furthermore, investments made in UCIs other than UCITS, may not exceed, in aggregate, 30% of the net assets of the Sub-Fund.
- (15) To the extent that a UCITS or UCI is composed of several Sub-Funds and provided that the principle of segregation of commitments of the different Sub-Funds is ensured in relation to third parties, each Sub-Fund shall be considered as a separate entity for the application of the limit laid down in (13) hereabove.

When the Sub-Fund invests in the units of other UCITS and/or other UCIs that are managed, directly or by delegation, by the same management company or by any other company to which the management company is linked by common management or control or by a substantial direct or indirect holding, that management company or other company may not charge subscription or redemption fees on account of the Sub-Fund's investment in the units of other UCITS and/or other UCI.

If the Sub-Fund shall decide to invest a substantial proportion of its assets in other UCITS and/or UCIs the maximum level of management fees that may be charged to both the Sub-Fund and to the UCITS and/or UCI in which it intends to invest will be disclosed in this Prospectus under the specific information regarding the concerned Sub-Fund.

Combined limits

(16) Notwithstanding the individual limits laid down in (1), (8) and (9), the Sub-Funds may not combine:

- ➤ Investments in Transferable Securities or Money Market Instruments issued by;
- Deposits made with; and/or
- > Exposures arising from OTC derivatives transactions undertaken with;
- a single body in excess of 20% of its net assets.
- (17) The limits set out in (1) to (5), (8) and (9) cannot be combined. Thus, investments by each Sub-Fund in Transferable Securities or Money Market Instruments issued by the same body or in deposits or derivative instruments made with this body in accordance with (1) to (5), (8) and (9) may not exceed a total of 35% of the net assets of the Sub-Fund.

(b) Restrictions with regard to control

- (18) No Sub-Fund may acquire such amount of shares carrying voting rights which would enable it to exercise significant influence over the management of an issuing body.
- (19) The Fund may acquire no more than:
 - (i) 10% of the outstanding non-voting shares of the same issuer,
 - (ii) 10% of the outstanding debt securities of the same issuer,
 - (iii) 25% of the outstanding shares or units of the same UCITS and/or other UCI.
 - (iv) 10% of the outstanding Money Market Instruments of the same issuer.

The limits set in points (ii) to (iv) may be disregarded at the time of acquisition if at that time the gross amount of debt securities or Money Market Instruments, or the net amount of the securities in issue, cannot be calculated.

- (20) The limits laid down in (18) and (19) are waived as regards:
 - ➤ Transferable Securities and Money Market Instruments issued or guaranteed by a Member State of the European Union or its local authorities:
 - ➤ Transferable Securities and Money Market Instruments issued or guaranteed by a non-Member State of the European Union;
 - ➤ Transferable Securities and Money Market Instruments issued by public international bodies of which one or more Member States of the European Union are members;

- ➤ Shares held in the capital of a company incorporated in a non-Member State of the European Union which invests its assets mainly in securities of issuing bodies having their registered office in that State, where under the legislation of that State, such holding represents the only way in which the relevant Sub-Fund can invest in the securities of issuing bodies of that State and provided that the investment policy of the company complies with regulations governing risk diversification and restrictions with regard to control laid down herein;
- ➤ Shares held in the capital of subsidiary companies carrying on only the business of management, advice or marketing in the country/state where the subsidiary is located, in regard to the repurchase of the shares at the Unitholders request exclusively on its or their behalf.

4) Furthermore, the following restrictions will have to be complied with:

- (i) No Sub-Fund may acquire either precious metals or certificates representing them.
- (ii) No Sub-Fund may acquire real estate, provided that investments may be made in securities secured by real estate or interests therein or issued by companies which invest in real estate or interests therein.
- (iii) No Sub-Fund may issue warrants or other instruments giving holders the right to purchase Units in such Sub-Fund.
- (iv) Without prejudice to the possibility of a Sub-Fund to acquire debt securities and to hold bank deposits, a Sub-Fund may not grant loans or act as guarantor on behalf of third parties. This restriction does not prohibit the Sub-Fund from acquiring Transferable Securities, Money Market Instruments or other financial instruments that are not fully paid-up.
- (v) A Sub-Fund may not carry out uncovered sales of Transferable Securities, Money Market Instruments or other financial instruments.

5) Notwithstanding the above provisions:

- (i) Each of the Sub-Funds needs not necessarily to comply with the limits referred to herein when exercising subscription rights attaching to Transferable Securities or Money Market Instruments which form part of such Sub-Fund's portfolio concerned. Each Sub-Fund has 6 months from its date of authorization to achieve compliance with paragraph 3 (a).
- (ii) If the limits referred to above are exceeded for reasons beyond the control of a Sub-Fund or as a result of the exercise of subscription rights, such Sub-Fund must adopt as a priority objective for its sales transactions the remedying of that situation, taking due account of the interests of its Unitholders.
- (iii) The Fund has access to employ a risk-management process which enables it to monitor and measure at any time the risk of the positions and their

contribution to the overall risk profile of the portfolios of the Sub-Funds. The Fund employs a process allowing for accurate and independent assessment of the value of the OTC derivative instruments.

(iv) Information relating to the quantitative limits that apply in the risk management of the Fund, to the methods chosen to this end and to the recent evolution of the main instrument categories' risks and yields may be provided to investors upon request.

15. SPECIAL INVESTMENT AND HEDGING TECHNIQUES AND INSTRUMENTS

15.1 General

Unless further restricted by the Investment Policies of a specific Sub-Fund as described in the relevant Appendix below, the Fund may employ techniques and instruments relating to Transferable Securities and Money Market Instruments provided that, for the time being, such techniques and instruments are only used for hedging purposes.

When these operations concern the use of derivative instruments, these conditions and limits shall conform to the provisions laid down in section "Investment Restrictions".

Under no circumstances shall these operations cause a Sub-Fund to diverge from its investment objectives.

Furthermore, the Fund may, for efficient portfolio management purposes, exclusively resort to securities lending and borrowing and as repurchase agreement transactions, provided that the following rules be complied with:

15.2 Securities lending transactions (pursuant CSSF Circular 08/356)

The Fund may engage in securities lending provided that these transactions comply with the following rules:

- (1) The Fund is authorised to lend securities within a standardised system organised by a recognised securities clearing institution or a first rate financial institution specialised in this type of transaction.
- (2) When engaging in securities lending, and except when this is done through a recognised securities clearing institution, the Fund must receive security of a value that, at the time of entering into the agreement, must be at least equal to the aggregate value of the securities lent.

This collateral must be given in the form of cash and/or securities issued or guaranteed by a Member State of the OECD or by the central, regional or local government agencies of these States, or by supranational institutions and organisations with EU, regional or worldwide scope, and must be blocked in favour of the Fund until expiry of the lending agreement.

Such collateral is not required when securities lending is arranged through the intermediary of Clearstream, Euroclear or any other institution whereby the lender is assured of receiving the value of the securities lent in application of a guarantee or otherwise.

(3) Lending transactions may not extend beyond a period of 30 days, nor may they exceed 50% of the aggregate market value of the securities in the portfolio of the Sub-Fund concerned. This restriction is not applicable if the Fund has the right to terminate the agreement at any time and obtain restitution of the securities lent.

15.3 Repurchase agreements (pursuant CSSF Circular 08/356)

On an ancillary basis and for the purpose of improving performances, the Fund may enter into repurchase agreements consisting of the purchase and sale of securities in which the terms of the agreement give the seller the right or the obligation to repurchase the securities from the purchaser at a price and a time agreed by the two parties at the time of entering into the agreement.

The Fund may enter into repurchase agreements either as purchaser or as seller. However, when entering into agreements of this type, the Fund shall comply with the following rules:

- (1) The Fund may purchase or sell securities in connection with a repurchase agreement only if the counterparty is a highly rated financial institution specialised in this type of transaction.
- (2) For the duration of a repurchase agreement, the Fund may not sell the securities that are the subject of the agreement either before the counterparty has exercised its right to repurchase the securities or before the repurchase period has expired.
- (3) When the Fund has obligations to make repurchases, it must ensure that the level of repurchase agreements is such that it can meet these obligations at any given time.

16. EFFICIENT PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT TECHNIQUES AND INSTRUMENTS RELATING TO TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES AND MONEY MARKET INSTRUMENT

The Fund may employ techniques and instruments relating to Transferable Securities, Money Market Instruments and other financial liquid assets for efficient portfolio management. All revenues arising from such techniques are fully returned to the Fund, net of direct and indirect operational costs resulting from it.

According to CSSF Circular 14/592, the policy regarding any direct or indirect operational cost/fee arising from the use of efficient portfolio management techniques will be indicated in the Prospectus if applicable. Therefore, the corresponding costs for operations of repurchase/reverse repurchase agreements are

up to a maximum of 10% of interest rates in each case and the costs for operations of securities lending agreements are up to a 10% of the amount paid as fee from the value of the loaned securities. The identity of the entity to which the fees are paid will be always disclosed in the Annual Report of the Fund, as well as its relation with the Management Company or the Custodian, if applicable.

When calculating the risk limits stated in article 52 of the UCITS Directive for a specific Sub-Fund, such calculation will always be combined with the risk exposures to a counterparty arising from efficient portfolio management techniques and OTC financial derivative transactions.

Following Circular 14/592 and if applicable in each Sub-Fund, the management of collateral, for OTC financial derivatives transactions as well as in cases of efficient portfolio management, will comply with the following conditions:

- Liquidity: any collateral received other than cash should be highly liquid and traded on a regulated market or multilateral trading facility with transparent pricing in order that it can be sold quickly at a price that is close to pre-sale valuation (conditions under article 56 of the UCITS Directive are also applicable).
- Valuation: any collateral received should be valued on at least a daily basis and assets that exhibit high price volatility should not be accepted as collateral unless suitably conservative haircuts are in place.
- Issuer credit quality: any collateral received should be of high quality (list stated further below in the collateral management section).
- Correlation: the collateral received by the Sub-Fund should be issued by an entity that is independent from the counterparty and is expected not to display a high correlation with the performance of the counterparty.
- Collateral diversification: in the use of collaterals, the Sub-Fund will ensure that each collateral should be sufficiently diversified in terms of country, markets and issuers. Sufficient diversification is to be considered as receiving from a counterparty a basket of collateral with a maximum exposure to a given issuer of 20% of its net asset value, and in cases of exposure of different counterparties, the different baskets of collaterals should be aggregated to calculate the 20% limit of exposure to a single issuer. However the Sub-Fund may be fully collateralised in different transferable securities and money market instruments issued or guaranteed by a Member State, one or more of its local authorities, a third country, or a public international body to which one or more Member States belong. Such Sub-Fund should receive securities from at least six different issues, but securities from any single issue should not account for more than 30% of the Sub-Fund' net asset value. Where a Sub-Fund intends to be fully collateralised in securities issued or guaranteed by a Member State, such event should be disclosed in the current Prospectus. Each Sub-Fund should also identify the Member States, local authorities, or public

international bodies issuing or guaranteeing securities which it is able to accept as collateral for more than 20% of its net asset value.

- Risks linked to the management of collateral will be covered by the risk management process of the Management Company.
- Any collateral received will be executed by the Fund without reference to or approval from the counterparty.

As the Fund is managed by Adepa Asset Management, S.A., it adheres to an effective policy to manage conflicts of interest created, implemented and maintained by Adepa Asset Management, S.A. This policy identifies, in relation to the collective portfolio management, the situations which cause, or could cause, a conflict of interest that represents a significant risk affecting the interests of all UCITS/UCIs managed by Adepa Asset Management, S.A.

Collateral management

As part of securities lending transactions or when entering into "réméré" transactions or repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements, each Sub-Fund must receive collateral, the value of which must be at least equal to the aggregate of the value of securities lent and of the counterparties' risk exposure.

The collateral must be blocked in the favour of the Fund and must only be:

- a. placed on deposit with entities prescribed in Article 50(f) of the UCITS Directive;
- b. invested in high-quality government bonds;
- c. used for the purpose of reverse repo transactions provided the transactions are with credit institutions subject to prudential supervision and the UCITS is able to recall at any time the full amount of cash on accrued basis;
- d. invested in short-term money market funds as defined in the Guidelines on a Common Definition of European Money Market Funds.

As previously mentioned, in all cases the level of collateral will be equivalent to the aggregate of the value of securities lent.

The collateral blocked will be held by the custodian of the Fund or, if required, by another regulated entity not linked to the provider of the collateral. Such blocked collateral can always be enforced by the Fund without any conditions.

In cases where collateral is used to mitigate counterparty risk exposure and according to CSSF Circular 14/592, non-cash collateral received will not be sold, reinvested or pledged.

Diversification requirements applicable to non-cash collateral also apply to reinvestment of cash collateral (if any). Re-investment of cash collateral is not foreseen for the time being in the Fund. If such re-investment is used in the future, the current Prospectus will reflect all the risks that may arise from that use of cash collateral.

Collateral diversification: the Sub-Fund will ensure that each collateral should be sufficiently diversified in terms of country, markets and issuers. Sufficient diversification is to be considered as receiving from a counterparty a basket of collateral with a maximum exposure to a given issuer of 20% of its net asset value, and in cases of exposure of different counterparties, the different baskets of collaterals should be aggregated to calculate the 20% limit of exposure to a single issuer.

As stated in the Appendices of some Sub-Funds, a Sub-Fund may use repurchase/reverse repurchase agreements according to the "Investments Restrictions" in order to optimize its cash management and may also enter into securities lending agreements on a limited basis in order to increase and enhance overall returns to the Sub-Fund. The Fund has a haircut policy relating to the following classes of assets received as collateral:

- i. Deposits with entities prescribed in Article 50(f) of the UCITS Directive; haircut ranging from 0-1%*;
- ii. High-quality government bonds: haircut ranging from 1-2%*;
- iii. Reverse repo transactions provided the transactions are with credit institutions subject to prudential supervision and the UCITS is able to recall at any time the full amount of cash on accrued basis: haircut ranging from 1-7%*;
- iv. short-term money market funds as defined in the Guidelines on a Common Definition of European Money Market Funds: haircut ranging from 1-10%*;

*The ranges from 1 to 10% are to be considered on a case by case basis depending on the characteristics of the collateral (quality, stability in the value, marketability, durability, etc).

Any collateral received will be valued on a daily basis and assets with high price volatility will not be accepted as collateral unless conservative haircuts are in place.

Any received collateral will be issued by an entity independent from the counterparty and may potentially display a low correlation with the performance of this counterparty.

17. CROSS INVESTMENTS AND MASTER FEEDER

• Cross Investments:

A Sub-Fund of the Fund may subscribe, acquire and/or hold securities to be issued or issued by one or more other Sub-Fund of the same Fund under the condition, however, that:

- The target Sub-Fund does not, in turn, invest in the Sub-Fund invested in this target Sub-Fund: and
- No more than 10% of the assets of the target Sub-Fund whose acquisition is contemplated may be invested pursuant to their management regulations or their instruments of incorporation in units of other target Sub-Fund of the Fund; and
- Voting rights, if any, attaching to the relevant securities are suspended for as long as they are held by the Sub-Fund concerned and without prejudice to the appropriate processing in the accounts and the periodic reports; and
- In any event, for as long as these securities are held by the Sub-Fund, their value will not be taken into consideration for the calculation of the net assets of the Fund for the purposes of verifying the minimum threshold of the net assets imposed by this Law; and
- There is no duplication of management/subscription or repurchase fees between those at the level of the Sub-Fund of the Fund having invested in the target compartment, and this target Sub-Fund.

• Master Feeder:

A Sub-Fund of the Fund may be a feeder Sub-Fund approved to invest at least 85% of its assets in units of another UCITS or investment Sub-Fund thereof (the "master UCITS") or a master Sub-Fund which has, among its unitholders, at least one feeder UCITS, is not itself a feeder UCITS and does not hold units of a feeder UCITS, subject to and in accordance with Chapter 9 of the Law of 17 December 2010 on undertakings for collective investments, as replaced or amended.

18. MONEY LAUNDERING PREVENTION

Pursuant to the Luxembourg law of 17 July 2008 on the fight against money laundering and terrorist financing which amends Luxembourg law of 12 November 2004 relating to the prevention of money laundering and terrorist financing, and the CSSF circulars 08/387 and 10/476, as amended from time to time, obligations have been imposed on all professionals of the financial sector to prevent the use of undertakings for collective investment for money laundering purposes and terrorist financing purposes. Within this context some important points have been introduced: a general risk-based approach, specific provisions regarding customer identification which include concepts such as beneficial owner and politically exposed person, detailed description of the customer identification procedure and the use of specific third parties in the customer identification procedure, among others.

This identification procedure must be complied with by the Management Company acting as administrator in the case of direct subscriptions to a Sub-Fund, and in the case of subscriptions received by the Sub-Fund from any intermediary resident in a country that does not impose on such intermediary an obligation to identify investors equivalent to that required under Luxembourg laws for the prevention of money laundering and terrorist financing. It is generally accepted that professionals of the financial sector resident in a country that has ratified the conclusions of the Financial Action Task Force (Groupe d'Action Financière) are deemed to be intermediaries having an identification obligation equivalent to that required under Luxembourg law.

The Management Company (and the Transfer Agent acting on behalf of the Management Company) reserves the right to request any further documentation as is necessary to verify the identity of an investor in conformity with the abovementioned laws and regulations.

19. *UNITS*

The Fund may issue Units of any Class within each separate Sub-Fund.

The Units in any Sub-Fund shall be issued without par value. Details regarding the Classes of Units available per Sub-Fund and their features are disclosed in the Appendices below.

The Management Company may decide to create further Classes of Units with different characteristics, and in such cases, this Prospectus will be updated accordingly.

The net proceeds from the subscription are invested in the specific portfolio of assets constituting the relevant Sub-Fund.

The Fund is one single entity; however, the right of investors and creditors regarding a Sub-Fund or raised by the constitution, operation or liquidation of a Sub-Fund are limited to the assets of this Sub-Fund, and the assets of a Sub-Fund will be answerable exclusively for the rights of the Unitholders relating to this Sub-Fund and for those of the creditors whose claim arose in relation to the constitution, operation or liquidation of this Sub-Fund. In the relations between the Fund's Unitholders, each Sub-Fund is treated as a separate entity. The assets, commitments, charges and expenses that cannot be allocated to one specific Sub-Fund will be charged to the different Sub-Funds pro rata to their respective net assets, if appropriate due to the amounts considered.

The Management Company shall issue Units in registered form only.

The inscription of the Unitholder's name in the register of Units evidences his or her right of ownership of such registered Units. A confirmation of unitholding will be delivered upon request.

The Management Company may decide to issue fractional Units up to three decimals.

All Units within each Class have equal rights as to repurchase and proceeds in a liquidation.

No general meetings of Unitholder shall be held and no voting rights shall be attached to the Units.

20. SUBSCRIPTION OF UNITS

Applications for Units may be made on any Business Day. Investors whose applications are received by the registrar and transfer agent, as more fully described for each Sub-Fund in the relevant Appendix below, will be allotted Units at a price corresponding to the Net Asset Value per Unit as of the relevant Valuation Day. Unless otherwise specified in the Appendices below, no subscription fees will be charged on the subscription of Units. The Net Asset Value per Unit of each Class will normally be available one (1) Business Day after the relevant Valuation Day, unless otherwise specified in any Sub-Fund's appendices. Applications for subscription may also be made through the distributors, in such a case investors should note that other subscription procedures or time limits may apply.

Any new subscriber must apply for a minimum amount as more fully described for each Sub-Fund in the relevant Appendix below. Such minimum may be reached by combining investments in various Sub-Funds. However, the Management Company may authorize a new subscriber to apply for units amounting to a sum that is less than the minimum initial investment or the equivalent in the reference currency of the relevant Sub-Fund from time to time.

Confirmation statements will be mailed to subscribers by the Management Company not later than five (5) Business Days from the date of payment of the subscription price at the risk of the Unitholder.

Payment shall be made in the Reference Currency of the Sub-Fund or, if applicable, in the denomination currency of the relevant Class as disclosed in the Appendices below in the form of electronic bank transfer net of all bank charges (except where local banking practices do not allow electronic bank transfers) to the order of the Custodian on the date the Net Asset Value of the allotted Units is available, unless otherwise specified in any Sub-Fund's appendices. Failing these payment applications will be considered as cancelled.

In the case of suspension of dealings in Units, the subscription will be dealt with on the first Valuation Day following the end of such suspension period.

The Management Company may agree to issue Units as consideration for a contribution in kind of securities to any Unitholder who agrees, in compliance with the conditions set forth by Luxembourg law, in particular the obligation to deliver a valuation report from the auditor of the Fund ("réviseur d'entreprises agréé") which shall be available for inspection, and provided that such securities comply with the investment objectives and

policies of the relevant Sub-Fund. Any costs incurred in connection with a contribution in kind of securities shall be borne by the relevant Unitholder.

The Management Company may, at any time at its discretion, temporarily discontinue, cease definitely or limit the issue of Units to persons or corporate bodies residing or established in certain countries or territories. The Management Company may also prohibit certain persons or corporate bodies from acquiring Units if such a measure is necessary for the protection of the Fund or any Sub-Fund, the Management Company or the Unitholder of the Fund or any Sub-Fund.

Furthermore, the Management Company may (i) reject in whole or in part at its discretion any application for Units or (ii) repurchase at any time the Units held by Unitholders who are excluded from purchasing or holding Units, in which case subscription monies paid, or the balance thereof, as appropriate, will normally be returned to the applicant within five (5) Business Days thereafter, provided such subscription monies have been cleared.

The Units have not been registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933 (the "Securities Act"), and the Fund has not been registered under the United States Investment Company Act of 1940. The Units may not be offered, sold, transferred or delivered, directly or indirectly, in the United States, its territories or possessions or to U.S. Persons (as defined in Regulation S under the Securities Act) except to certain qualified U.S. institutions in reliance on certain exemptions from the registration requirements of the Securities Act and with the consent of the Management Company. Neither the Units nor any interest therein may he beneficially owned by any other U.S. Person. The sale and transfer of Units to U.S. Persons is restricted and the Management Company may repurchase Units held by a U.S. Person or refuse to register any transfer to a U.S. Person as it deems appropriate to assure compliance with the Securities Act.

21. REDEMPTION OF UNITS

Unitholders may request redemption of their Units on any Business Day.

Application for redemption must be made in writing to the registrar and transfer agent. Investors whose applications for redemption are received by the registrar and transfer agent as more fully described for each Sub-Fund in the relevant Appendix below will have their Units redeemed at a price corresponding to the Net Asset Value per Unit as of the relevant Valuation Day.

Unless otherwise specified in the Appendices below, no redemption fees will be charged on the redemption of Units. The Net Asset Value per Unit of each Class will normally be available one (1) Business Day after the relevant Valuation Day, unless otherwise specified in any Sub-Fund's appendices.

Application for redemption may also be made through the distributors, in such a case investors should note that other redemption procedures and time limits may apply.

The Management Company shall ensure that an appropriate level of liquidity is maintained in each Sub-Fund so that, under normal circumstances, repurchase of Units of a Sub-Fund may be made by the Valuation Day.

If on any Valuation Day redemption requests relate to more than 10% of the Units in issue in a specific Class or Sub-Fund, the Management Company may decide that part or all of such requests for repurchase will be deferred for such period as the Management Company considers to be in the best interests of the Sub-Fund, but normally not exceeding one Valuation Day. On the next Valuation Day following such period, these repurchase requests will be met in priority to later requests.

The repurchase price may, depending on the Net Asset Value per Unit applicable on the date of repurchase, be higher or lower than the price paid at the time of subscription.

Instructions for the redemption of Units may be made by fax, or by post. Applications for redemption should contain the following information (if applicable): the identity and address of the Unitholder requesting the redemption, the relevant Sub-Fund, the relevant Class, the number of Units or currency amount to be redeemed, the name in which such Units are registered and full payment details, including name of beneficiary, bank and account number. All necessary documents to fulfil the redemption should be enclosed with such application.

Redemption requests must be accompanied by a document evidencing authority to act on behalf of such Unitholder or power of attorney which is acceptable in form and substance to the Management Company. Redemption requests made in accordance with the foregoing procedure shall be irrevocable, except that a Unitholder may revoke such request in the event that it cannot be honoured for any of the reasons specified in this Prospectus.

Payment of the redemption price will be made by the Custodian or its agents not later than five (5) Business Days counting from and including the date on which the Net Asset Value of the redeemed Units is available, unless otherwise specified in any Sub-Fund's appendices. Payment for such Units will be made in the Reference Currency of the relevant Sub-Fund or, if applicable, in the denomination currency of the relevant Class as disclosed in the Appendices below or in any freely convertible currency specified by the Unitholder. In the last case, any conversion cost shall be borne by the relevant Unitholder.

The Management Company may, at the request of a Unitholder, agree to make, in whole or in part, a payment in-kind of securities of the Sub-Fund to that Unitholder in lieu of paying to that Unitholder redemption proceeds in cash. The total or partial in-kind payment of the redemption proceeds may only be made (i) with the consent of the relevant Unitholder which consent may be indicated in the Unitholder's application form or otherwise and (ii) by taking into account the fair and equal treatment of the interests of all Unitholders. In addition, in-kind payments of the redemption proceeds will only be made provided that the Unitholders who receive the in-kind payments are legally entitled to receive and dispose of the redemption proceeds for the redeemed Units of the relevant Sub-Fund. In the event of an in-kind payment, the costs of any transfers of securities to the redeeming Unitholder shall be borne by that Unitholder.

To the extent that the Management Company makes in-kind payments in whole or in part, the Management Company will undertake its reasonable efforts, consistent with both applicable law and the terms of the in-kind securities being distributed, to distribute such in-kind securities to each redeeming Unitholder pro rata on the basis of the redeeming Unitholder's Units of the relevant Sub-Fund.

22. CONVERSION OF UNITS

Unless otherwise specified in the Appendices, Unitholders are entitled to convert all or part of their Units of a particular Class into Units of other Class(es) of Units (as far as available) within the same Sub-Fund or Units of the same or different Classes of Units (as far as available) of another Sub-Fund.

Unitholders who wish to convert all or part of their Units must submit an application by fax, or by post to the registrar and transfer agent, specifying the Sub-Fund, the Class or Sub-Funds and Classes concerned and the number of Units they wish to convert.

A conversion of Units of a particular Class of one Sub-Fund for Units of another Class in the same Sub-Fund and/or for Units of the same or different Class in another Sub-Fund will be treated as redemption of Units and a simultaneous purchase of Units of the acquired Class and/or Sub-Fund. A converting Unitholder may, therefore, realise a taxable gain or loss in connection with the conversion under the laws of the country of the Unitholder's citizenship, residence or domicile.

Units may be tendered for conversion on any Business Day.

All terms and conditions regarding the redemption of Units shall equally apply to the conversion of Units.

Investors whose applications for conversion are received by the registrar and transfer agent as more fully describe for each Sub-Fund in the relevant Appendix below will have their Units converted on the basis of the respective Net Asset Value of the relevant Units as of the applicable Valuation Day. The Net Asset Value of the relevant Units will normally be available one (1) Business Day after the relevant Valuation Day.

The price at which Units shall be converted will be determined by reference to the respective Net Asset Value of the relevant Units of the relevant Class of Units or Sub-Fund calculated on the relevant Valuation Day, taking into account the actual rate of exchange on the day concerned.

If the Valuation Day of the Class of Units or Sub-Fund taken into account for the conversion does not coincide with the Valuation Day of the Class of Units or Sub-Fund into which they shall be converted, the Unitholders' attention is drawn to the fact that the amount converted will not generate interest during the time separating the two Valuation Days.

Unless otherwise specified in the Appendices below, no conversion fee will be charged on the conversion of Units.

The rate at which all or part of the Units in a given Sub-Fund (the "Original Sub-Fund") are converted into Units in another Sub-Fund (the "New Sub-Fund"), or all or part of the Units of a particular Class of Units (the "Original Class") are converted into another Class of Units within the same Sub-Fund (the "New Class") is determined in accordance with the following formula:

A = BxCxE

D

where:

- A is the number of Units to be allocated in the New Sub-Fund or New Class;
- B is the number of Units of the Original Sub-Fund or Original Class which is to be converted;
- C is the Net Asset Value per Unit of the Original Class or the relevant Class of Units within the Original Sub-Fund at the relevant Valuation Day;
- D is the Net Asset Value per Unit of the New Class or the relevant Class of Units within the New Sub-Fund at the relevant Valuation Day; and
- E is the actual rate of exchange on the day concerned applied to conversions between Sub-Funds or Classes of Units denominated in different currencies, and is equal to 1 in relation to conversions between Sub-Funds or Classes of Units denominated in the same currency.

After conversion of the Units, Kredietrust Luxembourg S.A will inform the Unitholder of the number of Units of the New Sub-Fund or New Class obtained by conversion and the price thereof.

23. LATE TRADING AND MARKET TIMING

23.1 Late trading

The Fund determines the price of its Units on a forward basis. This means that it is not possible to know in advance the Net Asset Value per Unit at which Units will be bought or sold (exclusive of any sales charges). Subscription, redemptions and conversions applications have to be received and will be accepted for each Sub-Fund only in accordance with the deadlines set out in the Appendices.

23.2 Market timing

The Fund is not designed for investors with short term investment horizons. Activities which may adversely affect the interests of the Fund's Unitholders (for example that disrupt investment strategies or impact expenses) such as market timing or the use of the Fund as an excessive or short term trading vehicle are not permitted.

While recognising that Unitholders may have legitimate needs to adjust their investments from time to time, the Management Company in its discretion may, if it deems such activities adversely affect the interests of the Fund's Unitholders, take action as appropriate to deter such activities.

Accordingly if the Management Company determines or suspects that a Unitholder has engaged in such activities, it may suspend, cancel, reject or otherwise deal with that Unitholder's subscription or conversion applications and take any action or measures as appropriate or necessary to protect the Fund and its Unitholders.

24. DETERMINATION OF THE NET ASSET VALUE OF UNITS

The Net Asset Value per Unit of each Class of Units in each Sub-Fund is determined on each Valuation Day and will be expressed in the Reference Currency of the Sub-Fund. The Reference Currency of the Fund is Euro.

The Net Asset Value per Unit of each Class of Units is determined by dividing the value of the total assets of that Sub-Fund properly allocable to such Class less the liabilities of such Sub-Fund properly allocable to such Class by the total number of Units of such Class outstanding on the relevant Valuation Day.

The assets of the Fund, in relation to each Sub-Fund, shall be deemed to include:

- (i) All cash on hand or on deposit, including any interest accrued thereon;
- (ii) All bills and demand notes payable and accounts receivable (including proceeds of securities sold but not delivered);
- All bonds, time notes, certificates of deposit, shares, stock, debentures, debenture stocks, subscription rights, warrants, options and other securities, financial instruments and similar assets owned by the Fund or contracted for by the Management Company on behalf of the Fund (provided that the Management Company may make adjustments in a manner not inconsistent with paragraph (a) below with regards to fluctuations in the market value of securities caused by trading ex-dividends, ex-rights, or by similar practices);
- (iv) All stock dividends, cash dividends and cash distributions receivable by the Fund to the extent information thereon is reasonably available to the Fund;
- (v) All interest accrued on any interest bearing assets owned by the Fund except to the extent that the same is included or reflected in the principal amount of such asset;
- (vi) The preliminary expenses of the Fund, including the cost of issuing and distributing Units of the Fund, insofar as the same have not been written off;
- (vii) The liquidating value of all forward contracts and all call or put options the Fund has an open position in;

(viii) All other assets of any kind and nature including expenses paid in advance.

The value of such assets shall be determined as follows:

- (a) The value of any cash on hand or on deposit, bills and demand notes and accounts receivable, prepaid expenses, cash dividends and interest declared or accrued and not yet received, is deemed to be the full amount thereof, unless in any case the same is unlikely to be paid or received in full, in which case the value thereof is arrived at after making such discount as may be considered appropriate in such case to reflect the true value thereof;
- (b) The value of securities listed or dealt in on a Regulated Market, stock exchange or other regulated markets will be valued at the closing price on such markets on the day preceding the Valuation Day, save for securities listed on an Asian exchange, the value of which will be measured applying the closing prices on the Valuation Day. If a security is listed or traded on several markets, the closing price at the market which constitutes the main market for such securities, will be determining;
- In the event that the securities are not listed or dealt in on a Regulated Market, stock exchange or other regulated markets or if, in the opinion of the Management Company, the latest available price does not truly reflect the fair market value of the relevant securities, the value of such securities will be defined by the Management Company based on the reasonably foreseeable sales proceeds determined prudently and in good faith by the Management Company;
- (d) The liquidating value of futures, forward or options contracts not dealt in on Regulated Markets, stock exchange or other regulated markets shall mean their net liquidating value determined, pursuant to the policies established by the Management Company, on a basis consistently applied for each different variety of contracts. The liquidating value of futures, forward or options contracts dealt in on Regulated Markets, stock exchange or other regulated markets shall be based upon the last available settlement prices of these contracts on Regulated Markets, stock exchange or other regulated markets on which the particular futures, forward or options contracts are dealt in by the Management Company on behalf of the Fund; provided that if a futures, forward or options contract could not be liquidated on the day with respect to which net assets are being determined, the basis for determining the liquidating value of such contract shall be such value as the Management Company may deem fair and reasonable;
- (e) The Net Asset Value per Unit of any Sub-Fund may be determined by using an amortised cost method for all investments with a known short term maturity date. This involves valuing an investment at its cost and thereafter assuming a constant amortisation to maturity of any discount or premium, regardless of the impact of fluctuating interest rates on the market value of the investments. While this method provides certainty in valuation, it may result in periods during which value, as determined by amortisation cost, is higher or lower than

the price such Sub-Fund would receive if it sold the investment. The Management Company will continually assess this method of valuation and recommend changes, where necessary, to ensure that the relevant Sub-Fund's investments will be valued at their fair value as determined in good faith by the Management Company. If the Management Company believe that a deviation from the amortised cost per Unit may result in material dilution or other unfair results to Unitholders, the Management Company shall take such corrective action, if any, as they deem appropriate to eliminate or reduce, to the extent reasonably practicable, the dilution or unfair results;

The relevant Sub-Fund shall, in principle, keep in its portfolio the investments determined by the amortisation cost method until their respective maturity date:

- Interest rate swaps will be valued at their market value established by reference to the applicable interest rates curve. Index and financial instruments related swaps will be valued at their market value established by reference to the applicable index or financial instrument. The valuation of the index or financial instrument related swap agreement shall be based upon the market value of such swap transaction established in good faith pursuant to procedures established by the Management Company;
- (g) All other assets will be valued at fair market value as determined in good faith pursuant to procedures established by the Management Company;
- (h) The Management Company, in its discretion, may permit some other method of valuation to be used if it considers that such valuation better reflects the fair value of any asset of the Fund.

In the event that extraordinary circumstances render valuations as aforesaid impracticable or inadequate, the Management Company is authorized, prudently and in good faith, to follow other rules in order to achieve a fair valuation of the assets of the Fund.

If since the time of determination of the net asset value per Unit of any Class in a particular Sub-Fund there has been a material change in the quotations in the markets on which a substantial portion of the investments of such Sub-Fund are dealt in or quoted, the Management Company may, in order to safeguard the interests of the Unitholders and the Fund, cancel the first valuation of the net asset value per Unit and carry out a second valuation. All the subscription, redemption and exchange orders received on such day will be dealt at the second net asset value per Unit.

The liabilities of the Fund shall be deemed to include:

- (i) All loans, bills and accounts payable;
- (ii) All accrued interest on loans of the Fund (including accrued fees for commitment for such loans);
- (iii) All accrued or payable administrative expenses;

- (iv) All known liabilities, present and future, including all matured contractual obligations for payment of money or property;
- (v) An appropriate provision for future taxes based on capital and income to the relevant Valuation Day, as determined from time to time by the Management Company, and other reserves, if any, authorised and approved by the Management Company; and
- (vi) All other liabilities of the Fund of whatsoever kind and nature except liabilities represented by Units of the Fund. In determining the amount of such liabilities, the Management Company shall take into account all expenses payable and all costs incurred by the Fund, which shall comprise inter alia the fees and expenses detailed in Section 24 hereafter.

The Net Asset Value per Unit for each Sub-Fund is determined by the Management Company acting as administrator and made available at the registered office of the Management Company one (1) Business Day after the relevant Valuation Day, unless otherwise specified in any Sub-Fund's appendices.

Each Sub-Fund shall be valued so that all agreements to purchase or sell securities are reflected as of the date of execution, and all dividends receivable and distributions receivable are accrued as of the relevant ex-dividend dates.

25. SUSPENSION OF THE NET ASSET VALUE OF UNITS

In each Sub-Fund, the Management Company may temporarily suspend the determination of the Net Asset Value of Units and in consequence the issue, repurchase and conversion of Units in any of the following events:

- When one or more Regulated Markets, stock exchanges or other regulated markets, which provide the basis for valuing a substantial portion of the assets of the Fund attributable to such Sub-Fund, or when one or more Regulated Markets, stock exchanges or other regulated markets in the currency in which a substantial portion of the assets of the Fund attributable to such Sub-Fund is denominated, are closed otherwise than for ordinary holidays or if dealings therein are restricted or suspended;
- When, as a result of political, economic, military or monetary events or any circumstances outside the responsibility and the control of the Management Company, disposal of the assets of the Fund attributable to such Sub-Fund is not reasonably or normally practicable without being seriously detrimental to the interests of the Unitholders;
- In the case of a breakdown in the normal means of communication used for the valuation of any investment of the Fund attributable to such Sub-Fund or if, for any exceptional circumstances, the value of any asset of

the Fund attributable to such Sub-Fund may not be determined as rapidly and accurately as required;

If, as a result of exchange restrictions or other restrictions affecting the transfer of funds, transactions on behalf of the Fund are rendered impracticable or if purchases and sales of the Fund's assets attributable to such Sub-Fund cannot be effected at normal rates of exchange.

Any such suspension will be published in the manner described in this Prospectus and notified to those Unitholders having made an application for subscription, redemption or conversion of Units for which the calculation of the NAV has been suspended.

Such suspension as to any Sub-Fund will have no effect on the calculation of the Net Asset Value per Unit, the issue, redemption and conversion of Units of any other Sub-Fund.

Any request for subscription, redemption and conversion will be irrevocable except in the event of a suspension of the calculation of the Net Asset Value per Unit in the relevant Sub-Fund.

26. FEES AND EXPENSES

26.1 Fees of the Management Company

The Management Company is entitled to an annual management fee calculated as a percentage of the average net assets of each Sub-Fund payable at the end of each month. Such fee is described in detail for each Sub-Fund in the relevant section in each Appendix and may be applied, or may be waived in whole or in part at discretion of the Management Company.

The Management Company may pay to the Investment Manager or the Investment Advisor a fee out of its management fee as from time to time agreed between involved parties.

The Management Company may be entitled to subscription, redemption, distribution and conversion fees. These fees are described in detail for each Sub-Fund in the relevant section in the Appendices below. These fees may be applied, or may be waived in whole or in part at the discretion of the Management Company and may be paid to the Management Company or other intermediaries involved in the distribution of Units of the Sub-Funds.

Furthermore, the Management Company may receive customary fees for the risk management rendered to the Fund.

26.2 Fees for the Investment Manager

The Management Company may appoint the investment management functions for each Sub-Fund to one or more Investment Managers listed in the Appendices below.

The Investment Manager is entitled to an annual investment management fee calculated as a percentage of the average net assets of each Sub-Fund payable at the end of each month. Such fee, which will not exceed 3.00% per annum of the net assets of each Sub-Fund, is described in detail for each Sub-Fund in the relevant section in each Appendix, if applicable and may be applied, or may be waived in whole or in part at discretion of the Investment Manager.

The Investment Manager may be entitled to subscription, redemption, distribution and conversion fees. These fees are described in detail for each Sub-Fund in the relevant section in each Appendix below. These fees may be applied, or may be waived in whole or in part at the discretion of the Investment Manager and may be paid to other intermediaries involved in the distribution of Units of the Sub-Funds.

26.3 Duplication of fees

There shall be duplication of management fees and/or investment management fees, each time a Sub-Fund invests in other UCIs and/or UCITS. The maximum proportion of management fees charges both to the Sub-fund itself and to the UCIs and/or UCITS in which the Sub-Fund invests shall be disclosed in the annual report of the Fund and the Prospectus (art.46.3 of the Law of 2010).

26.4 There will be no subscription and redemption fees on account of the Sub-Fund's investment in the units of such other UCIs and/or UCITS when the Sub-Fund invests in units of other UCITS and/or other UCIs that are managed, directly or by delegation, by the Management Company or by any other company with which the Company is linked by common management or control, or by a substantial direct or indirect holding. Performance fee

The Investment Manager and/or the Investment Advisor may be entitled to a performance fee in relation to certain Sub-Funds, as indicated in the Appendices to the Prospectus.

26.5 Formation and launching expenses of the Fund

The costs and expenses of the formation of the Fund and the initial issue of its Units will be borne by the Fund and amortized over a period not exceeding 5 years from the formation of the Fund and in such amounts in each year as determined by the Management Company on an equitable basis.

26.6 Formation and launching expenses of additional Sub-Funds

The costs and expenses incurred in connection with the creation of a new Sub-Fund shall be written off over a period not exceeding five years against the assets of such Sub-Fund only and in such amounts each year as determined by the Management Company on an equitable basis. The newly created Sub-Fund shall not bear a pro-rata of the costs and expenses incurred in connection with the formation of the Fund and the initial issue of Units, which have not already been written off at the time of the creation of the new Sub-Fund.

26.7 Fees of the Administrative and Domiciliary Agent

The Management Company representing the Fund is currently acting as Administrative and Domiciliary Agent. The Administrative and Domiciliary Agent is responsible for the central administration of the Fund. In consideration for the administrative agent services and unless otherwise established in each of the Appendices, the Administrative and Domiciliary Agent is entitled to an administration fee, up to a maximum of 0.35% p.a., out of the net assets of the relevant Sub-Fund payable at the end of each month subject to a minimum of 35.000 Euros per annum per Sub-Fund. Administration fees amount will be available in the Fund Annual Accounts. For the avoidance of doubt, this maximum fee of 0.35% per year is not included in the management fee.

Furthermore, the Administrative and Domiciliary Agent may receive customary fees for the domiciliary and corporate services rendered to the Fund.

Any reasonable disbursements and out-of-pocket expenses properly incurred by the Administrative and Domiciliary Agent in its capacity as administrator will be borne by the relevant Sub-Fund.

The administrative and domiciliary services may be delegated by the Administrative and Domiciliary Agent to a third party with the prior approval of the Management Company.

26.8 Fees of the Registrar and Transfer Agent

The Registrar and Transfer Agent shall be entitled to receive out of the net assets of each Sub-Fund a maximum fee of 0.10% per year, calculated on the basis of the Net Asset Value determined on the last Valuation Day of each month. For the avoidance of doubt, this maximum fee of 0.10% per year is not included in the management fee.

Any reasonable disbursements and out-of-pocket expenses properly incurred by the Registrar and Transfer Agent will be borne by the relevant Sub-Fund.

26.9 Fees of the Paying Agent

The Paying Agent shall be entitled to receive out of the net assets of each Sub-Fund a maximum fee of 0.10% per year, calculated on the basis of the Net Asset Value determined on the last Valuation Day of each month. For the avoidance of doubt, this maximum fee of 0.10% per year is not included in the management fee.

Any reasonable disbursements and out-of-pocket expenses properly incurred by the Paying Agent, will be borne by the relevant Sub-Fund.

26.10 Fees of the Custodian

The fees due to the Custodian may amount to up to 0.10% per year, calculated on the basis of the Net Asset Value determined on the last Valuation Day of each month. Notwithstanding such fees, the Custodian will receive customary banking fees for transactions.

Any reasonable disbursements and out-of-pocket expenses (including without limitation telephone, telex, e-mail, website, cable and postage expenses) incurred by the Custodian,

and any custody charges of banks and financial institutions to which custody of assets of a Sub-Fund is entrusted, will be borne by the relevant Sub-Fund.

26.11 Transaction fees

Each Sub-Fund will bear all costs and expenses of buying and selling securities and financial instruments including, without limitation, any brokerage fees and commissions, interest, taxes, governmental duties, charges and levies and any other transaction related expenses excluding any costs and expenses relating to custody (collectively "Transaction Fees") which relate to the relevant Sub-Fund.

26.12 Other operating expenses

The Fund shall pay out of the assets of the relevant Sub-Fund all expenses payable by the Sub-Fund which shall include but not be limited to:

- > Fees payable to and reasonable disbursements and out-of-pocket expenses incurred by the Management Company, the Custodian, the paying agent, the registrar and transfer agent, as applicable;
- All taxes which may be due on the assets and the income of the Sub-Fund (in particular, the "taxe d'abonnement" and any stamp duties payable);
- > Usual banking fees due on transactions involving securities held in the Sub-Fund;
- > Legal expenses incurred by the Management Company and the Custodian while acting in the interests of the Unitholders;
- > The cost of any liability insurance or fidelity bonds covering any costs, expenses or losses arising out of any liability of, or claim for damage or other relief asserted against the Management Company and/or the Custodian or other agents of the Fund for violation of any law or failure to comply with their respective obligations under these Management Regulations or otherwise with respect to the Fund;
- The costs and expenses of the preparation and printing of written confirmations of Units; the costs and expenses of preparing and/or filing and printing of the Management Regulations and all other documents concerning the Fund, including registration statements and prospectuses and explanatory memoranda with all authorities (including local securities dealers' associations) having jurisdiction over the Fund or the offering of Units of the Fund; the costs and expenses of preparing, in such languages as are necessary for the benefit of the Unitholders, including the beneficial holders of the Units, and distributing annual and semi-annual reports and such other reports or documents as may be required under the applicable laws or regulations of the above-cited authorities; the cost of accounting, bookkeeping and calculating the Net Asset Value; the cost of preparing and distributing public notices to the Unitholders; lawyers' and auditor's fees; and all similar administrative charges, including all advertising expenses and other expenses directly incurred in offering or distributing the Units.

All recurring charges will be charged first against income, then against capital gains and then against assets. Other charges may be amortized over a period not exceeding 5 years.

27. AUDITORS

The auditor of the Fund is appointed by the Management Company and shall, with respect to the assets of the Fund, carry out the duties provided by the Law of 2010.

28. DIVIDENDS

Where specified for specific Categories as disclosed under the Appendices below, the Management Company may declare annual or other interim distributions out from the investment income gains and realized capital gains and, if considered necessary to maintain a reasonable level of dividends, out of any other funds available for distribution.

Notwithstanding the above, no distribution may be made as a result of which the total net assets of the Fund would fall below the equivalent in the Reference Currency of the Fund of the minimum amount as required by Luxembourg law.

Where a distribution is made and not claimed within five years from its due date, it will lapse and will revert to the relevant Sub-Fund.

29. DURATION, LIQUIDATION AND AMALGAMATION OF THE FUND OR OF ANY SUB-FUND

The Fund and each Sub-Fund have been established for an unlimited period of time. However, the Fund or any Class and/or Sub-Fund may be terminated at any time by decision of the Management Company. The Management Company may, in particular decide such dissolution where the value of the net assets of the Fund or of any Class and/or Sub-Fund has decreased to an amount determined by the Management Company to the minimum level for the Fund or for such Sub-Fund to be operated in an economically efficient manner, in case of a significant change of the economic or political situation or as a matter of rationalisation.

The liquidation of the Fund or of a Class and/or Sub-Fund cannot be requested by a Unitholder.

The event leading to dissolution of the Fund must be announced by a notice published in the Mémorial. In addition, the event leading to dissolution of the Fund must be announced in at least two newspapers with appropriate distribution, at least one of which must be a Luxembourg newspaper. Such event will also be notified to the

Unitholders in such other manner as may be deemed appropriate by the Management Company.

The Management Company or, as the case may be, the liquidator it has appointed, will realise the assets of the Fund or of the relevant Class(es) and/or Sub-Fund(s) in the best interest of the Unitholders thereof, and upon instructions given by the Management Company, the Custodian will distribute the net proceeds from such liquidation, after deducting all liquidation expenses relating thereto, amongst the Unitholders of the relevant Class(es) and/or Sub-Fund(s) in proportion to the number of Units held by them. The Management Company may distribute the assets of the Fund or of the relevant Class and/or Sub-Fund wholly or partly in kind to any Unitholder who agrees in compliance with the conditions set forth by the Management Company (including, without limitation, delivery of independent valuation report issued by the auditors of the Fund) and the principle of equal treatment of Unitholders.

At the close of liquidation of the Fund, the proceeds thereof corresponding to Units not surrendered will be kept in safe custody with the Luxembourg *Caisse de Consignation* until the prescription period has elapsed. As far as the liquidation of any Class and/or Sub-Fund is concerned, the proceeds thereof corresponding to Units not surrendered for repayment at the close of liquidation shall be kept at the earliest possible time in safe custody at the *Caisse de Consignation*.

Units may be redeemed, provided that Unitholders are treated equally.

Under the same circumstances as provided in the first paragraph above in relation to the liquidation of Class(es) and/or Sub-Funds, the Management Company may decide to amalgamate a Class and/or Sub-Fund into another Class and/or Sub-Fund. Unitholders will be informed of such decision by a notice sent to the Unitholders at their address indicated in the register of Unitholders or in such manner as may be deemed appropriate by the Management Company and, in addition, the publication will contain information in relation to the new Class and/or Sub-Fund so as to enable the Unitholders to make an informed judgement of the impact of the amalgamation. This information shall be provided at least thirty days before the last date for requesting repurchase or redemption or, as the case may be, conversion without additional charge under Article 73, paragraph (1) of the Law of 2010.

The Management Company may decide to allocate the assets of any Class and/or Sub-Fund to those of another UCI submitted to part I of the Law of 2010 or to another Sub-Fund within such other UCI (such other UCI or Sub-Fund within such other UCI being the "new Fund") (following a split or consolidation, if necessary, and the payment of the amount corresponding to any fractional entitlement to Unitholders) where the value of the net assets of any Class and/or Sub-Fund has decreased to an amount determined by the Management Company to be the minimum level for the Class and/or Sub-Fund to be operated in an economically efficient manner, in case of a significant change of the economic or political situation or as a matter of rationalisation. Such decision will be announced by a notice sent to the Unitholders at their address indicated in the register of Unitholders or in such other manner as may be deemed appropriate by the Management Company (and, in addition, the notice will contain information in relation

to the new Fund), one month before the date on which the amalgamation becomes effective in order to enable Unitholders to request redemption of their Units, free of charge, during such period. After such period, Unitholders having not requested the redemption of their Units will be bound by the decision of the Management Company, provided that only the Unitholders having expressly consented thereto may be transferred to a foreign UCI.

30. APPLICABLE LAW AND JURISDICTION

The Management Regulations are governed by the laws of the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg and any dispute arising between the Unitholders, the Management Company and the Custodian will be subject to the jurisdiction of the District Court of Luxembourg.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Management Company and the Custodian may subject themselves and the Fund, (i) to the jurisdiction of the courts of the countries in which the Units of the Fund are offered and sold with respect to claims by investors resident in such countries, and (ii) with respect to matters relating to subscription, repurchase and conversion by Unitholders resident in such countries, to the laws of such countries.

The claims of the Unitholders against the Management Company or the Custodian will lapse five years after the date of the event which gave rise to such claims.

31. GOVERNING LANGUAGE

English shall be the governing language of the Management Regulations.

32. TAX STATUS IN LUXEMBOURG

32.1 Withholding Tax

Any distribution by the Sub-Funds, redemption or sale of Units can be made free and clear of any withholding or deduction for or on account of any taxes of whatsoever nature imposed, levied, withheld, or assessed by Luxembourg or any political subdivision or taxing authority thereof or therein, in accordance with applicable Luxembourg law (see, however paragraph 30.5 "EU Savings Directive" below).

32.2 Taxes on Income and Capital Gains

A Unitholder who derives income from such Unit, from the Sub-Funds or who realizes a gain on the disposal or redemption thereof will not be subject to Luxembourg taxation on such income or capital gains unless:

- (i) such holder is, or is deemed to be, resident in Luxembourg for Luxembourg tax purposes (or for the purposes of the relevant provisions); or
- (ii) such income or gain is attributable to an enterprise or part thereof which is carried on through a permanent establishment, a permanent representative or a fixed base of business in Luxembourg to which the Units in the Sub-Funds are attributable.

32.3 Net Wealth Tax

Luxembourg net wealth tax will not be levied on Units held by a Unitholder unless:

- (i) such Unitholder is, or is deemed to be, resident in Luxembourg for the purpose of the relevant provisions; or
- (ii) such Unit is attributable to an enterprise or part thereof which is carried on through a permanent establishment, a permanent representative or a fixed base of business in Luxembourg to which the Units in the Fund are attributable.

As regards individuals, the Luxembourg law of 23 December 2005 has abrogated the net wealth tax starting with the year 2006.

32.4 Inheritance and Gift Tax

Where the Units are transferred for no consideration:

- (i) no Luxembourg inheritance tax is levied on the transfer of the Units upon death of a Unitholder in cases where the deceased Unitholder was not a resident of Luxembourg for inheritance tax purposes;
- (ii) Luxembourg gift tax will be levied in the event that the gift is made pursuant to a notarial deed signed before a Luxembourg notary.

32.5 EU Savings Directive

(i) General principles

On 3 June 2003, the EU Council of Economic and Finance Ministers adopted a new directive regarding the taxation of savings income. The directive is applied by Member States as from 1 July 2005 and has been implemented in Luxembourg by the law of 21 June 2005 (the "Law"). Under the directive, each Member State is required to provide to the tax authorities of another Member State details of payments of interest or other similar income paid by a paying agent within the meaning of the EU Savings Directive to an individual or certain types of entities called "residual entities" resident(s) in that other Member State (or certain dependant and associated territories)

The withholding tax is currently of 35%.

Also with effect from 1 July 2005, a number of non-EU countries (Switzerland, Andorra, Liechtenstein, Monaco and San Marino), and certain dependent or associated territories of certain Member States, have agreed to adopt similar measures (either provision of information or transitional withholding) in relation to payments made by a paying agent within its jurisdiction to, or collected by such a paying agent for, an individual or a

residual entity in a Member State. In addition, Luxembourg has entered into reciprocal provision of information or transitional withholding arrangements with certain of those dependent or associated territories (Jersey, Guernsey, Isle of Man, Montserrat, British Virgin Islands, Netherlands Antilles and Aruba) in relation to payments made by a paying agent in Luxembourg to, or collected by such a paying agent for, an individual or a residual entity resident in one of those territories.

(ii) Rules applicable to Sub-Funds

In the context of the Luxembourg funds, the Law qualifies as interest (i) income distributed by the Sub-Funds or (ii) income deriving from the redemption, sale or refund of Units.

The impact of the EU Savings Directive on income from distribution and redemption, sale or refund arising from Units depends on two basic principles: (i) the asset test and (ii) the look-through principle.

The asset test provides that: (i) if a Sub-Fund invests 15% or less of its assets in debt claims, distribution and profits on redemption, sale or refund arising from Units are out of the scope of the withholding tax (*de minimis* rule), (ii) if a Sub-Fund invests more than 15%, up to 40% of its assets in debt claims, distribution fall within the scope of the withholding tax (but not the redemption, sale or refund of Units) and (iii) if a Sub-Fund invests more than 40% of its assets in debts claims, the profits realized upon distribution and redemption, sale or refund fall within the scope of the withholding tax. According to the Law, the asset test can be determined by reference to the investment policy of a given Sub-Fund and, failing which, by reference to the actual composition of its assets.

Following the look-through principle, when a given Sub-Fund falls within the ambit of the EU Savings Directive according to the asset test (see above), the withholding tax should be levied on the portion of the distribution or profit from the redemption, sale or refund deriving from the accumulated interest received by such Sub-Fund. When a paying agent has no information concerning the proportion of the income which derives from interest payments, the total amount of the income shall be considered as interest payment.

33. ACCOUNTING YEAR

The accounts of the Fund are closed on 31 December each year. The first accounting year will end on 31 December 2007.

The consolidated accounts of the Fund shall be kept in the Reference Currency of the Fund. The financial statements relating to the separate Sub-Funds shall also be expressed in the Reference Currency of the relevant Sub-Fund.

The accounts of the Management Company and of the Fund will be audited annually by an auditor appointed from time to time by the Management Company.

34. UNITHOLDERS' INFORMATION

Audited annual reports and unaudited semi-annual reports will be made available to the Unitholders at no cost to them at the offices of the Management Company, the Custodian and any paying agent. The first reports of the Fund will be an unaudited report as of 31 December 2006, an unaudited report as of 30 June 2007 and an audited report as of 31 December 2007.

Any other financial information to be published concerning the Fund or the Management Company, including the Net Asset Value, the issue, conversion and repurchase price of the Units for each Sub-Fund and any suspension of such valuation, will be made available to the public at the offices of the Management Company, the Custodian and any paying agent.

To the extent required by Luxembourg law or decided by the Management Company, all notices to Unitholders will be sent to Unitholders at their address indicated in the register of Unitholders, sent to the Unitholders via e-mail, published on the website of the Fund, in one or more newspapers and/or in the Mémorial.

35. SPECIAL DERIVATIVE RISK FACTORS

(i) Leverage Risk

Due to the low margin deposits normally required in trading derivative instruments, a high degree of leverage is typical for trading in derivatives instruments. As a result, a relatively small price movement in a derivative contract may result in substantial losses to the investor. Investment in derivative transactions may result in losses in excess of the amount invested.

(ii) Short Selling Risk

Certain Sub-Funds may take short positions on a security through the use of derivatives in the expectation that their value will fall in the open market. The possible loss from taking a short position on a security differs from the loss that could be incurred from a cash investment in the security; the former may be unlimited as there is no restriction on the price to which a security may rise, whereas the latter cannot exceed the total amount of the cash investment. The short selling of investments may also be subject to changes in regulations, which could impose restrictions that could adversely impact returns to investors.

(iii) Particular Risks of Exchange Traded Derivative Transactions Suspensions of Trading

Each securities exchange or commodities contract market typically has the right to suspend or limit trading in all securities or commodities which it lists. Such a suspension would render it impossible for the Sub-Funds, to liquidate positions and, accordingly, expose the Sub-Fund to losses and delays in its ability to redeem Units.

(iii) Particular Risks of OTC Derivative Transactions:

a. Absence of regulation; counterparty default

In general, there is less governmental regulation and supervision of transactions in the OTC markets (in which currencies, forward, spot and option contracts, credit default swaps, total return swaps and certain options on currencies are generally traded) than of transactions entered into on organised exchanges. In addition, many of the protections afforded to participants on some organised exchanges, such as the performance guarantee of an exchange clearinghouse, may not be available in connection with OTC transactions. Therefore, any Sub-Fund entering into OTC transactions will be subject to the risk that its direct counterparty will not perform its obligations under the transactions and that the Sub-Fund will sustain losses. A Sub-Fund will only enter into transactions with counterparties which it believes to be creditworthy, and may reduce the exposure incurred in connection with such transactions through the receipt of letters of credit or collateral from certain counterparties. Regardless of the measures the Sub-Fund may seek to implement to reduce counterparty credit risk, however, there can be no assurance that a counterparty will not default or that the Sub-Fund will not sustain losses as a result. In cases where collateral is used to mitigate counterparty risk exposure and according to CSSF Circular 14/592, non-cash collateral received will not be sold, reinvested or pledged.

b. Liquidity; requirement to perform

From time to time, the counterparties with which the Sub-Fund effects transactions might cease making markets or quoting prices in certain of the instruments. In such instances, the Sub-Fund might be unable to enter into a desired transaction in currencies, credit default swaps or total return swaps or to enter into an offsetting transaction with respect to an open position, which might adversely affect its performance. Further, in contrast to exchange-traded instruments, forward, spot and option contracts on currencies do not provide the Investment Manager with the possibility to offset the Sub-Fund's obligations through an equal and opposite transaction. For this reason, in entering into forward, spot or options contracts, the Sub-Fund may be required, and must be able, to perform its obligations under the contracts.

36. DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION

The following documents will be available for inspection during normal business hours at the registered office of the Management Company:

- 1) Prospectus;
- 2) The Management Regulations;
- 3) The Articles of Incorporation of the Management Company;

- 4) The latest annual and semi-annual reports of the Fund;
- 5) The Custodian and Paying Agent Agreement;
- 6) The Sub-Registrar and Transfer Agency Agreement;
- 7) The Investment Management Agreement, if any.

Copies of the documents under (1) to (4) above may be obtained without cost at the same address and/or on the Management Company's Website.

37. APPENDICES TO THE PROSPECTUS

SUB-FUNDS

The Sub-Funds are the following:

INCOMETRIC FUND - Investore Fundamentals
 INCOMETRIC FUND - Global Valor
 INCOMETRIC FUND - Director World Bond - USD
 INCOMETRIC FUND - Director World Yield
 INCOMETRIC FUND - Director World Average
 INCOMETRIC FUND - Director World Ambition
 INCOMETRIC FUND - Director World Bond - EUR
 INCOMETRIC FUND - Dunas Patrimonio
 INCOMETRIC FUND - Abando Total Return
 INCOMETRIC FUND - Equam Global Value
 INCOMETRIC FUND - Ventura

INCOMETRIC FUND – Dux Flexible Global

INCOMETRIC FUND - Maya Absolute Return

INCOMETRIC FUND-Investore Fundamentals

Investment objective and policy

The Sub-Fund's investment objective is to achieve a total return over a rolling 3 year period, in its Reference Currency by mainly investing in UCITS or UCIs in accordance with Section "Investment Restrictions".

The investment strategy of the Sub-Fund will privilege UCITS or UCIs investing primarily in Europe and the United States of America.

The Sub-Fund may also invest up to 20% of its net assets in worldwide equities, bonds, money market instruments and derivatives in accordance with Section "Investment Restrictions".

The aforementioned investment strategy corresponds for the investors to a medium investment risk.

For hedging and for investment purposes, the Sub-Fund may use financial derivative instruments products traded on a regulated market and/or over the counter (OTC), provided they are contracted with first class financial institutions specialized in this type of transactions. In particular, the Sub-Fund may take exposure through financial derivative instrument and forwards on any eligible underlying, such as currencies, interest rates, transferable securities or financial indices, at all times in compliance with the Grand Ducal Regulation. The risks associated with the derivative instruments listed in the Investment Policy above are further detailed in section 6 "Risk Considerations" and section 33 "Special Derivative Risk Factors".

	INVESTORE, SPRL
Investment Advisor	Neerhoflaan 128 B -1780 Wemmel. Belgium.
Reference Currency	Euro
Valuation Day	Once a week, on each Wednesday. If such day is not a Business Day in Luxembourg or falls within a period of suspension of determination of Net Asset Value, as described in the Section "Determination of the Net Asset Value of Units", then the valuation day will be the following Business Day.
Classes of Units	Classes A: reserved for retail investors and denominated in Euro Classes B: reserved for financial intermediaries and denominated in Euro Classes I: reserved for institutional investors and denominated in Euro

Initial Subscription Day Classes B: 30 April 2008 Classes B: EUR 100.00 Payment of the initial price must to be received by 30 April 2008 at latest. Classes A: EUR 15,000 Minimum Investment Classes B: EUR 15,000 Classes I: EUR 125,000
Initial Price Payment of the initial price must to be received by 30 April 2008 at latest. Classes A: EUR 15,000 Minimum Investment Classes B: EUR 15,000
Minimum Investment Classes B: EUR 15,000
Classes I: EUR 125,000
Minimum Subsequent Classes A: none Investment
Classes B: none
Classes I: none
Subscription, redemption and conversion deadline 10 a.m. Luxembourg time one (1) Business Days prior to the applicable Valuation Day. Applications received by the registrar and transfer agent after this time will be deemed to have been received on the following Business Day.
Subscription Commission Classes A and B, up to 5% of the initial price / No Asset Value per Unit, in favor of the Management Company or other intermediaries involved in the distribution of Units.
The Subscription Commission may be applied or material be waived, in whole or in part, at the discretion of the relevant Distributor and/or Management Company. The Subscription Commission (if any) will be paid to the Management Company or other intermediaries involved in the distribution of Units.
Redemption Commission None
Conversion Commission None
Management Fee
The maximum level of management fees that may be Classes A: 1.85%
charged to both the Sub-Fund and Classes B: 2.10%
to the UCITS and/or UCI in which it invests will be 4,5% Classes I: 1%
Performance Fee Mechanism The performance fee is calculated in respect of each performance period. A performance period is a quarter

The first performance period for a Sub-Fund begins on the Initial Subscription Day or on the last day of the Initial Subscription Period and ends on the last day of the relevant quarter. The performance fee will be calculated separately per Class of Units.

The performance fee is payable quarterly as at the end of a performance period. The percentage of the performance fee in respect of any Class is indicated below and will be equivalent to a percentage of the amount by which the Net Asset Value of the relevant Class of Units exceeds the Hurdle Rate. The Hurdle Rate is a performance of 1,5% per quarter.

The performance fee is calculated on the basis of the Net Asset Value per Unit after deducting all expenses, fees (but not the performance fee) and adjusting for subscriptions, redemptions and distributions during the relevant performance period so that these will not affect the performance fee payable.

In the event that an investor redeems Units prior to the end of the financial year, any accrued but unpaid performance fee relating to those Units shall be paid to the Investment Advisor at the last Valuation Day of the relevant quarter.

If the Investment Advisor Agreement with an Investment Advisor entitled to a performance fee is terminated before the end of any performance period, the performance fee in respect of such performance period will be calculated and paid as if the date of termination was the end of the relevant performance period.

Performance Fee percentages

Classes A: 20%

Classes B: 15%

Classes I: 10%

INCOMETRIC FUND-GLOBAL VALOR

Investment objective and policy

The Sub-Fund's investment objective is to achieve a total return in its Reference Currency by actively managing a diversified portfolio investing in worldwide equities with special focus to medium size market capitalization companies.

The Sub-Fund will in particular invest in companies that have a positive impact on the community or environment.

The aforementioned investment strategy corresponds for the investors to a moderate investment risk.

For hedging and for investment purposes, the Sub-Fund may use financial derivative instruments products traded on a regulated market and/or over the counter (OTC), provided they are contracted with first class financial institutions specialized in this type of transactions. In particular, the Sub-Fund may take exposure through financial derivative instrument and forwards on any eligible underlying, such as currencies, interest rates, transferable securities or financial indices, at all times in compliance with the Grand Ducal Regulation. The risks associated with the derivative instruments listed in the Investment Policy above are further detailed in section 6 "Risk Considerations" and section 33 "Special Derivative Risk Factors".

Reference Currency	Euro
Investment Advisor	INTERSELECT NV Labuan Malaysia
Valuation Day	Once a week, on each Wednesday. If such day is not a Business Day in Luxembourg or falls within a period of suspension of determination of Net Asset Value, as described in the Section "Determination of the Net Asset Value of Units", then the valuation day will be the following Business Day.
	Classes A: reserved for retail investors and denominated in Euro
Classes of Units	Classes B: reserved for financial intermediaries and denominated in Euro
	Classes C: reserved for retail investors and denominated in GBP

	Classes I: reserved for institutional investors and
	denominated in Euro
C. C	
Categories of Units	Classes A, B, C and I: accumulation of income
	The initial subscription period will be from 1 st December 2009 to 6 th January 2010.
	The Net Asset Value will be calculated for the first time on the 6^{th} January 2010 (the Launch Date).
	Class C: the initial subscription period will be from Wednesday 4 th June 2014 to 18 th June 2014.
Initial Subscription Day/Period	The Net Asset Value will be calculated for the first time on the Wednesday 18 th June 2014.
	If no subscription has been received on the initial subscription period, the launch date will be the next Business Day on which the first subscriptions for the Sub-Fund will have been accepted at the initial price. The Management Company at its own discretion may establish an extension of the initial subscription period and/or a change of the launch date
	Classes A: EUR 100 Classes B: EUR 100
Initial Price	Classes C: GBP 100 Classes I: Units will be issued at an Initial Price in EUR corresponding to the Net Asset Value per Unit calculated for the Class B on the 20th February 2013
	Classes A: EUR 10,000
	Classes B: EUR 10,000
Minimum Initial Investment	Classes C. CDD 9 000
	Classes C: GBP 8,000 Classes I: EUR 250,000
	Classes 1. LON 230,000
Minimum Subsequent	Classes A: none
Investment	Classes B: none
	Classes C: none
	Classes I: none
Subscription, redemption and conversion deadline	10 a.m. Luxembourg time one (1) Business Days prior to the applicable Valuation Day. Applications received by the registrar and transfer agent after this time will be deemed to have been received on the following Business Day.

Subscription Commission	For Units A, B and C up to 5% of the initial price / Net Asset Value per Unit, in favor of the Management Company or other intermediaries involved in the distribution of Units. For Units I, none. The Subscription Commission may be applied or may be waived, in whole or in part, at the discretion of the relevant Distributor and/or Management Company. The Subscription Commission (if any) will be paid to the Management Company or other intermediaries involved in the distribution of Units.
Redemption Commission	None
Conversion Commission	None
Management Fee	Classes A: 1.85%
	Classes B: 1.85%
	Classes C: 1.85%
	Classes I: 1.55%
Distribution Fees	Classes A and C: 0.80%
	Classes B and I: none
	The distribution commission may be applied or may be waived, in whole or in part, at the discretion of the relevant Distributor and/or Management Company. The distribution commission (if any) will be paid to the Management Company or other intermediaries involved in the distribution of Units.
Performance Fee Mechanism	The performance fee is calculated in respect of each performance period. A performance period is a quarter. The first performance period for a Sub-Fund begins on the last day of the Initial Subscription Period and ends on the last day of the relevant quarter. The performance fee will be calculated separately per Class of Units. The performance fee is payable quarterly as at the end of a performance period. The percentage of the performance fee in respect of any Class is indicated below and will be equivalent to a percentage of the amount by which the Net Asset Value of the relevant Class of Units exceeds the Hurdle Rate. The Hurdle Rate is the performance exceeding the MSCI World Index quoted in Euro per quarter.

	The performance fee is calculated on the basis of the Net Asset Value per Unit after deducting all expenses, fees (but not the performance fee) and adjusting for subscriptions, redemptions and distributions during the relevant performance period so that these will not affect the performance fee payable.
	In the event that an investor redeems Units prior to the end of the financial year, any accrued but unpaid performance fee relating to those Units shall be paid to the Investment Advisor at the last Valuation Day of the relevant quarter.
	If the Investment Advisor Agreement with an Investment Advisor entitled to a performance fee is terminated before the end of any performance period, the performance fee in respect of such performance period will be calculated and paid as if the date of termination was the end of the relevant performance period.
Performance Fee percentages	Classes A: 10% above the MSCI World Index quoted in Euro. Classes B: 10% above the MSCI World Index quoted in
	Euro. Classes C: 10% above the MSCI World Index quoted in GBP.
	Classes I: 10% above the MSCI World Index quoted in Euro.

INCOMETRIC FUND - DIRECTOR WORLD BOND - USD

Investment objective and policy

The Sub-Fund's investment objective is to achieve a capital appreciation, above Benchmark, in its Reference Currency by actively managing a diversified portfolio which may include worldwide bonds, money market instruments, equities and UCITS and/or UCIs.

The established Benchmark for the Sub-Fund is 5% MSCI World and 95% of Barclays Aggregate Bond Index

UCITS and/or UCIs may consist of up to 100% of the net assets of the Sub-Fund in accordance with section "Investment Restrictions". Investments in worldwide equities will not represent more than 30% of the net assets of the Sub-Fund.

The aforementioned investment strategy corresponds for the investors to a medium investment risk and investment horizon of 2 years.

Investment Advisor	DYNAMIC GLOBAL ADVISORS Sarl.
Reference Currency	USD
Valuation Day	Once a week, on each Monday. If such day is not a Business Day in Luxembourg or falls within a period of suspension of determination of Net Asset Value as described in the Section "Determination of the Net Asset Value of Units", then the valuation day will be the following Business Day.
Classes of Units	Classes A: reserved for retail and institutional investors and denominated in USD
Categories of Units	Classes A: accumulation of income
Initial Subscription Day	Classes A: 6 April 2010 If no subscription has been received on the initial subscription day, the launch date will be the next Business Day on which the first subscriptions for the Sub-Fund will have been accepted at the initial price. The Management Company at its own discretion may establish an extension of the initial subscription period and/or a change of the launch date.

Initial Price	Classes A: USD 100
Minimum Initial Investment	Classes A: USD 1,000
Minimum Subsequent Investment	Classes A: none
Subscription, redemption and conversion deadline	11 a.m. Luxembourg time one (1) Business Day prior to the applicable Valuation Day. Applications received by the registrar and transfer agent after this time will be deemed to have been received on the following Business Day.
Subscription Commission	None
Redemption Commission	None
Conversion Commission	None
Management Fee The maximum level of management fees that may be charged to both the Sub-Fund and to the UCITS and/or UCI in which it invests will be 3,5%, it being understood that this percentage shall be disclosed in the annual report of the Fund (and the Prospectus, following art. 46.3 of Law of 2010). Investors should note that rebates or retrocession paid by the underlying UCIT and/or UCIS shall be for the benefit of the Sub-Fund.	Classes A: 0.6 %
Performance Fee Mechanism	The performance fee is calculated in respect of each performance period. A performance period is a quarter. The first performance period for a Sub-Fund begins on the last day of the Initial Offer Period and ends on the last day of the relevant quarter. The performance fee

will be calculated separately per Class of Units. The performance fee is payable quarterly as at the end of a performance period. The percentage of the performance fee in respect of any Class is indicated below and will be equivalent to a percentage of the amount by which the Net Asset Value of the relevant Class of Units exceeds the High Watermark. The High Watermark is the highest Net Asset Value per Unit of the respective Class since inception. The performance fee is calculated on the basis of the Net Asset Value per Unit after deducting all expenses, fees (but not the performance fee) and adjusting for subscriptions, redemptions and distributions during the relevant performance period so that these will not affect the performance fee payable. In the event that an investor redeems Units prior to the end of the financial year, any accrued but unpaid performance fee relating to those Units shall be paid to the Investment Advisor at the last Valuation Day of the relevant quarter. If the Investment Advisor Agreement with an Investment Advisor entitled to a performance fee is terminated before the end of any performance period, the performance fee in respect of such performance period will be calculated and paid as if the date of termination was the end of the relevant performance period. Performance Fee Class A: 15%

INCOMETRIC FUND - DIRECTOR WORLD YIELD

Investment objective and policy

The Sub-Fund's investment objective is to achieve a capital appreciation, above Benchmark, in its Reference Currency by actively managing a diversified portfolio which may include worldwide bonds, money market instruments, equities and UCITS and/or UCIs.

The established Benchmark for the Sub-Fund is 30% of the MSCI World EUR and 70% of the AFI Fondos Inversión Renta Fija Largo Euro (AFI RFLE)

UCITS and/or UCIs may consist of up to 100% of the net assets of the Sub-Fund in accordance with section "Investment Restrictions". Investments in worldwide equities will not represent more than 30% of the net assets of the Sub-Fund.

The aforementioned investment strategy corresponds for the investors to a medium investment risk investment horizon of 2 years.

Investment Advisor	DYNAMIC GLOBAL ADVISORS Sarl
Reference Currency	Euro
Valuation Day	Once a week, on each Monday. If such day is not a Business Day in Luxembourg or falls within a period of suspension of determination of Net Asset Value as described in the Section "Determination of the Net Asset Value of Units", then the valuation day will be the following Business Day.
Classes of Units	Classes A: reserved for retail and institutional investors and denominated in Euro
Categories of Units	Classes A: accumulation of income
Initial Subscription Day	Classes A: 6 April 2010 If no subscription has been received on the initial subscription day, the launch date will be the next Business Day on which the first subscriptions for the Sub-Fund will have been accepted at the initial price. The Management Company at its own discretion may establish an extension of the initial subscription period and/or a change of the launch date.

Initial Price	Classes A: EUR 100
Minimum Initial Investment	Classes A: EUR 1,000
Minimum Subsequent Investment	Classes A: none
Subscription, redemption and conversion deadline	11 a.m. Luxembourg time one (1) Business Day prior to the applicable Valuation Day. Applications received by the registrar and transfer agent after this time will be deemed to have been received on the following Business Day.
Subscription Commission	None
Redemption Commission	None
Conversion Commission	None
Management Fee	
The maximum level of management fees that may be charged to both the Sub-Fund and to the UCITS and/or UCI in which it invests will be 4 %, it being understood that this percentage shall be disclosed in the annual report of the Fund (and the Prospectus, following art. 46.3 of Law of 2010).	Classes A: 1 %
Investors should note that rebates or retrocession paid by the underlying UCIT and/or UCIS shall be for the benefit of the Sub-Fund.	
Performance Fee Mechanism	The performance fee is calculated in respect of each performance period. A performance period is a quarter. The first performance period for a Sub-Fund begins on the last day of the Initial Offer Period and ends on the last day of the relevant quarter. The performance fee

will be calculated separately per Class of Units. The performance fee is payable quarterly as at the end of a performance period. The percentage of the performance fee in respect of any Class is indicated below and will be equivalent to a percentage of the amount by which the Net Asset Value of the relevant Class of Units exceeds the High Watermark. The High Watermark is the highest Net Asset Value per Unit of the respective Class since inception. The performance fee is calculated on the basis of the Net Asset Value per Unit after deducting all expenses, fees (but not the performance fee) and adjusting for subscriptions, redemptions and distributions during the relevant performance period so that these will not affect the performance fee payable. In the event that an investor redeems Units prior to the end of the financial year, any accrued but unpaid performance fee relating to those Units shall be paid to the Investment Advisor at the last Valuation Day of the relevant quarter. If the Investment Advisor Agreement with an Investment Advisor entitled to a performance fee is terminated before the end of any performance period, the performance fee in respect of such performance period will be calculated and paid as if the date of termination was the end of the relevant performance period. Performance Fee Class A: 15%

INCOMETRIC FUND – DIRECTOR WORLD AVERAGE

Investment objective and policy

The Sub-Fund's investment objective is to achieve a capital appreciation, above Benchmark, in its Reference Currency by actively managing a diversified portfolio which may include worldwide bonds, money market instruments, equities and UCITS and/or UCIs.

The established Benchmark for the Sub-Fund is 45% of the MSCI World EUR and 55% of the AFI Fondos Inversión Renta Fija Largo Euro (AFI RFLE)

UCITS and/or UCIs may consist of up to 100% of the net assets of the Sub-Fund in accordance with section "Investment Restrictions". Investments in worldwide equities will not represent more than 45% of the net assets of the Sub-Fund.

The aforementioned investment strategy corresponds for the investors to a medium investment risk investment horizon of 2 years.

Investment Advisor	DYNAMIC GLOBAL ADVISORS Sarl
Reference Currency	Euro
Valuation Day	Once a week, on each Monday. If such day is not a Business Day in Luxembourg or falls within a period of suspension of determination of Net Asset Value as described in the Section "Determination of the Net Asset Value of Units", then the valuation day will be the following Business Day.
Classes of Units	Classes A: reserved for retail and institutional investors and denominated in Euro
Categories of Units	Classes A: accumulation of income
Initial Subscription Day	Classes A: 1 st July 2010 If no subscription has been received on the initial subscription day, the launch date will be the next Business Day on which the first subscriptions for the Sub-Fund will have been accepted at the initial price. The Management Company at its own discretion may establish an extension of the initial subscription period and/or a change of the launch date.

Initial Price	Classes A: EUR 100
Minimum Initial Investment	Classes A: EUR 1,000
Minimum Subsequent Investment	Classes A: none
Subscription, redemption and conversion deadline	11 a.m. Luxembourg time one (1) Business Day prior to the applicable Valuation Day. Applications received by the registrar and transfer agent after this time will be deemed to have been received on the following Business Day.
Subscription Commission	None
Redemption Commission	None
Conversion Commission	None
Management Fee	
The maximum level of management fees that may be charged to both the Sub-Fund and to the UCITS and/or UCI in which it invests will be 4 %, it being understood that this percentage shall be disclosed in the annual report of the Fund (and the Prospectus, following art. 46.3 of Law of 2010).	Classes A: 1.5 %
Investors should note that rebates or retrocession paid by the underlying UCIT and/or UCIS shall be for the benefit of the Sub-Fund.	
Performance Fee Mechanism	The performance fee is calculated in respect of each performance period. A performance period is a quarter. The first performance period for a Sub-Fund begins on the last day of the Initial Offer Period and ends on the last day of the relevant quarter. The performance fee

will be calculated separately per Class of Units. The performance fee is payable quarterly as at the end of a performance period. The percentage of the performance fee in respect of any Class is indicated below and will be equivalent to a percentage of the amount by which the Net Asset Value of the relevant Class of Units exceeds the High Watermark. The High Watermark is the highest Net Asset Value per Unit of the respective Class since inception. The performance fee is calculated on the basis of the Net Asset Value per Unit after deducting all expenses, fees (but not the performance fee) and adjusting for subscriptions, redemptions and distributions during the relevant performance period so that these will not affect the performance fee payable. In the event that an investor redeems Units prior to the end of the financial year, any accrued but unpaid performance fee relating to those Units shall be paid to the Investment Advisor at the last Valuation Day of the relevant quarter. If the Investment Advisor Agreement with an Investment Advisor entitled to a performance fee is terminated before the end of any performance period, the performance fee in respect of such performance period will be calculated and paid as if the date of termination was the end of the relevant performance period. Performance Fee Class A: 15%

INCOMETRIC FUND – DIRECTOR WORLD AMBITION

Investment objective and policy

The Sub-Fund's investment objective is to achieve a capital appreciation, above Benchmark, in its Reference Currency by actively managing a diversified portfolio which may include worldwide bonds, money market instruments, equities and UCITS and/or UCIs.

The established Benchmark for the Sub-Fund is 80% of the MSCI World EUR and 20% of the AFI Fondos Inversión Renta Fija Largo Euro (AFI RFLE)

UCITS and/or UCIs may consist of up to 100% of the net assets of the Sub-Fund in accordance with section "Investment Restrictions". Investments in worldwide equities will not represent more than 80% of the net assets of the Sub-Fund.

The aforementioned investment strategy corresponds for the investors to a medium investment risk investment horizon of 2 years.

Investment Advisor	DYNAMIC GLOBAL ADVISORS Sarl
Reference Currency	Euro
Valuation Day	Once a week, on each Monday. If such day is not a Business Day in Luxembourg or falls within a period of suspension of determination of Net Asset Value as described in the Section "Determination of the Net Asset Value of Units", then the valuation day will be the following Business Day.
Classes of Units	Classes A: reserved for retail and institutional investors and denominated in Euro
Categories of Units	Classes A: accumulation of income
Initial Subscription Day	Classes A: 1 st July 2010 If no subscription has been received on the initial subscription day, the launch date will be the next Business Day on which the first subscriptions for the Sub-Fund will have been accepted at the initial price. The Management Company at its own discretion may establish an extension of the initial subscription period and/or a change of the launch date.

Initial Price	Classes A: EUR 100
Minimum Initial Investment	Classes A: EUR 1,000
Minimum Subsequent Investment	Classes A: none
Subscription, redemption and conversion deadline	11 a.m. Luxembourg time one (1) Business Day prior to the applicable Valuation Day. Applications received by the registrar and transfer agent after this time will be deemed to have been received on the following Business Day.
Subscription Commission	None
Redemption Commission	None
Conversion Commission	None
Management Fee	
The maximum level of management fees that may be charged to both the Sub-Fund and to the UCITS and/or UCI in which it invests will be 4 %, it being understood that this percentage shall be disclosed in the annual report of the Fund (and the Prospectus, following art. 46.3 of Law of 2010).	Classes A: 1.5 %
Investors should note that rebates or retrocession paid by the underlying UCIT and/or UCIS shall be for the benefit of the Sub-Fund.	
Performance Fee Mechanism	The performance fee is calculated in respect of each performance period. A performance period is a quarter. The first performance period for a Sub-Fund begins on the last day of the Initial Offer Period and ends on the last day of the relevant quarter. The performance fee

will be calculated separately per Class of Units. The performance fee is payable quarterly as at the end of a performance period. The percentage of the performance fee in respect of any Class is indicated below and will be equivalent to a percentage of the amount by which the Net Asset Value of the relevant Class of Units exceeds the High Watermark. The High Watermark is the highest Net Asset Value per Unit of the respective Class since inception. The performance fee is calculated on the basis of the Net Asset Value per Unit after deducting all expenses, fees (but not the performance fee) and adjusting for subscriptions, redemptions and distributions during the relevant performance period so that these will not affect the performance fee payable. In the event that an investor redeems Units prior to the end of the financial year, any accrued but unpaid performance fee relating to those Units shall be paid to the Investment Advisor at the last Valuation Day of the relevant quarter. If the Investment Advisor Agreement with an Investment Advisor entitled to a performance fee is terminated before the end of any performance period, the performance fee in respect of such performance period will be calculated and paid as if the date of termination was the end of the relevant performance period. Performance Fee Class A: 15%

INCOMETRIC FUND - DIRECTOR WORLD BOND - EUR

Investment objective and policy

The Sub-Fund's investment objective is to achieve a capital appreciation, above Benchmark, in its Reference Currency by actively managing a diversified portfolio which may include worldwide bonds, money market instruments, equities and UCITS and/or UCIs.

The established Benchmark for the Sub-Fund is 5% MSCI World and 95% of Barclays Aggregate Bond Index

UCITS and/or UCIs may consist of up to 100% of the net assets of the Sub-Fund in accordance with section "Investment Restrictions". Investments in worldwide equities will not represent more than 30% of the net assets of the Sub-Fund.

The aforementioned investment strategy corresponds for the investors to a medium investment risk and investment horizon of 2 years.

According to the Investment Policy above and the non-intensive use of derivate instruments, the Sub-Fund employs the Commitment Approach as the global exposure determination methodology.

Investment Advisor	DYNAMIC GLOBAL ADVISORS Sarl
Reference Currency	EUR
Valuation Day	Once a week, on each Monday. If such day is not a Business Day in Luxembourg or falls within a period of suspension of determination of Net Asset Value as described in the Section "Determination of the Net Asset Value of Units", then the valuation day will be the following Business Day.
Classes of Units	Classes A: reserved for retail and institutional investors and denominated in EUR
Categories of Units	Classes A: accumulation of income
Initial Subscription Day	Classes A: 1 st July 2010 If no subscription has been received on the initial subscription day, the launch date will be the next Business Day on which the first subscriptions for the Sub-Fund will have been accepted at the initial price. The Management Company at its own discretion may establish an extension of the initial subscription period and/or a change of the launch date.

Initial Price	Classes A: EUR 100
Minimum Initial Investment	Classes A: EUR 1,000
Minimum Subsequent Investment	Classes A: none
Subscription, redemption and conversion deadline	11 a.m. Luxembourg time one (1) Business Day prior to the applicable Valuation Day. Applications received by the registrar and transfer agent after this time will be deemed to have been received on the following Business Day.
Subscription Commission	None
Redemption Commission	None
Conversion Commission	None
Management Fee	
The maximum level of management fees that may be charged to both the Sub-Fund and to the UCITS and/or UCI in which it invests will be 3,5%, it being understood that this percentage shall be disclosed in the annual report of the Fund (and the Prospectus, following art. 46.3 of Law of 2010).	Classes A: 0.6 %
Investors should note that rebates or retrocession paid by the underlying UCIT and/or UCIS shall be for the benefit of the Sub-Fund.	
Performance Fee Mechanism	The performance fee is calculated in respect of each performance period. A performance period is a quarter. The first performance period for a Sub-Fund begins on the last day of the Initial Offer Period and ends on the last day of the relevant quarter. The performance fee

will be calculated separately per Class of Units. The performance fee is payable quarterly as at the end of a performance period. The percentage of the performance fee in respect of any Class is indicated below and will be equivalent to a percentage of the amount by which the Net Asset Value of the relevant Class of Units exceeds the High Watermark. The High Watermark is the highest Net Asset Value per Unit of the respective Class since inception. The performance fee is calculated on the basis of the Net Asset Value per Unit after deducting all expenses, fees (but not the performance fee) and adjusting for subscriptions, redemptions and distributions during the relevant performance period so that these will not affect the performance fee payable. In the event that an investor redeems Units prior to the end of the financial year, any accrued but unpaid performance fee relating to those Units shall be paid to the Investment Advisor at the last Valuation Day of the relevant quarter. If the Investment Advisor Agreement with an Investment Advisor entitled to a performance fee is terminated before the end of any performance period, the performance fee in respect of such performance period will be calculated and paid as if the date of termination was the end of the relevant performance period. Performance Fee Class A: 15%

INCOMETRIC FUND-DUNAS PATRIMONIO

Investment Objective

The Investment Objective of the Sub-Fund is to achieve mid-term capital appreciation. The Sub-Fund seeks to accomplish this objective through investing in transferable securities, UCITS/UCIs or by using financial derivative instruments dealt in on regulated markets.

The Sub-Fund will be managed following a total return strategy. The portfolio allocation will be based on financial fundamental analysis using macroeconomic environment indicators to identify the countries and sectors with best background for corporate earnings growth at any time.

The Sub-Fund will be invested in bonds (including but not limited to fixed-rate or floating securities, zero-coupon bonds and treasury bonds) and money market instruments issued or dealt on the Eurozone and other international regulated markets, with a maximum exposure of 25% in those bonds issued in Emerging Markets. Moreover, the Sub-Fund may invest up to 50% of its net assets in European and International equities and equity-linked instruments (including but not limited to ordinary or preferred shares, convertibles bonds), with a maximum exposure of 25% in emerging market equity. The Sub-Fund may achieve also its investment objective indirectly, by investing through UCIs/UCITS, including ETFs.

For hedging and for investment purposes, the Sub-Fund may use financial derivative instruments products traded on a regulated market and/or over the counter (OTC), provided they are contracted with first class financial institutions specialized in this type of transactions. In particular, the Sub-Fund may take exposure through financial derivative instrument and forwards on any eligible underlying, such as currencies, interest rates, transferable securities or financial indices, at all times in compliance with the Grand Ducal Regulation.

According to the Investment Policy above and the non-intensive use of derivate instruments, the Sub-Fund employs the Commitment Approach as the global exposure determination methodology.

In addition to the above, the Sub-Fund may use deposits and cash borrowings according to the "Investments Restrictions" in order to optimize its cash management and may also enter into securities lending agreements on a limited basis in order to increase and enhance overall returns to the Sub-Fund.

The aforementioned investment strategy corresponds for the investors with a medium investment risk profile.

Performance Fee Mechanism

The performance fee is calculated in respect of each performance period. A performance period is a quarter. The first performance period for a Sub-Fund begins on the last day of the Initial Subscription Period and ends on the last day of the relevant quarter. The performance fee will be calculated separately per Class of Units.

The performance fee is payable quarterly as at the end of a performance period. The percentage of the performance fee in respect of any Class of Units is indicated below. The performance fee in respect of the Sub-Fund will be paid if the net asset value per Unit as at the end of performance period exceeds the High Watermark and Hurdle Rate. The High Watermark is the highest net asset value per Unit at the end of any performance period where performance fees have been paid of each respective Class since inception. The Hurdle Rate is EURIBOR 3M + 1%. The EURIBOR 3M rate will be registered at the beginning of each performance period.

The performance fee is calculated on the basis of the Net Asset Value per Unit after deducting all expenses, fees (but not the performance fee) and adjusting for subscriptions, redemptions and distributions during the relevant performance period so that these will not affect the performance fee payable.

In the event that an investor redeems Units prior to the end of the financial year, any accrued but unpaid performance fee relating to those Units shall be paid to the Investment Advisor at the last Valuation Day of the relevant quarter.

If the Investment Advisor Agreement with an Investment Advisor entitled to a performance fee is terminated before the end of any performance period, the performance fee in respect of such performance period will be calculated and paid as if the date of termination was the end of the relevant performance period.

Reference Currency	Euro
Investment Manager	Dunas Capital - Gestão de Activos – SGFIM SA
Valuation Day	Once a week, on each Friday. If such day is not a Business Day in Luxembourg or falls within a period of suspension of determination of Net Asset Value, as described in the Section "Determination of the Net Asset Value of Units", then the valuation day will be the following Business Day.
Classes of Units	Classes A: reserved for retail investors and denominated in Euro Classes I: reserved for institutional investors and denominated in Euro
Categories of Units	Classes A and I: accumulation of income
Initial Subscription Day/Period	The initial subscription period will be from 12 th June 2012 to 20 th June 2012. The Net Asset Value will be calculated for the first time on the 20 th June 2012 (the Launch Date). If no subscription has been received on the initial subscription period, the launch date will be the next Business Day on which the first subscriptions for the Sub-Fund will have been accepted at the initial price. The Management Company at its own discretion may

	establish an extension of the initial subscription period
	and/or a change of the launch date
Initial Price	Classes A: EUR 5
Illitiai Frice	Classes I: EUR 5
Minimum Initial Investment	Classes A: EUR 5,000
Transfer Interest Treestment	Classes I: EUR 250,000
	Classes A: EUR 100
Minimum Subsequent Investment	Classes I: EUR 5,000
	11 a.m. Luxembourg time, one (1) Business Day prior
	to the applicable Valuation Day. Applications received
	by the registrar and transfer agent after this time will
	be deemed to have been received on the following
	Business Day.
Subscription, redemption and	Subscription monies are due to be paid within one (1)
conversion deadline	Business Day following the Valuation Day.
	The Sub-Fund intends to normally pay redemption
	proceeds (less any tax or duty imposed on the
	redemption of the Units) within five (5) Business Days
	following the relevant Valuation Day.
	For Units A and I, up to 5% of the initial price / Net
	Asset Value per Unit, in favor of the Management
	Company or other intermediaries involved in the
	distribution of Units. For Units I, none.
Subscription Commission	The Subscription Commission may be applied or may
	be waived, in whole or in part, at the discretion of the
	relevant Distributor and/or Management Company. The
	Subscription Commission (if any) will be paid to the
	Management Company or other intermediaries involved in the distribution of Units.
Redemption Commission	None
Conversion Commission	None
Management Fee	Class A: 1.5%
The maximum level of	Class I: 0.65%
management fees that may be	
charged to both the Sub-Fund and	
to the UCITS and/or UCI in which	
it invests will be 4%, it being	

understood that this percentage shall be disclosed in the annual report of the Fund (and the Prospectus, following art. 46.3 of Law of 2010).	
Investors should note that rebates or retrocession paid by the underlying UCIT and/or UCIS shall be for the benefit of the Sub-Fund.	
Performance Fee	Classes A: 15% Classes I: 15%

INCOMETRIC FUND - ABANDO TOTAL RETURN

Investment Objective

The Investment Objective of the Sub-Fund is to achieve mid-term capital appreciation. The Sub-Fund seeks to accomplish this objective through investing primarily in equity and fixed income mainly issued in OECD countries.

The Sub-Fund will be managed following a total return strategy. The portfolio allocation will be based on microeconomic and macroeconomic environment indicators to identify investment opportunities. The Sub-Fund is expected to obtain the majority of the return from equities. However, investments in fixed income securities and other assets classes will also be employed to diversify the sources of return and risk.

The Sub-Fund will be mainly invested in equities, equity-linked instruments (including but not limited to ordinary or preferred shares, convertibles bonds) and in bonds (including but not limited to fixed-rate or floating securities, zero-coupon bonds and treasury bonds), money market instruments issued or dealt on the Eurozone and other international regulated markets and deposits.

On ancillary basis the Sub-Fund may achieve also its investment objective indirectly, by investing through UCIs/UCITS, including ETFs.

For hedging and for investment purposes, the Sub-Fund may use financial derivative instruments products traded on a regulated market and/or over the counter (OTC), provided they are contracted with first class financial institutions specialized in this type of transactions. In particular, the Sub-Fund may take exposure through financial derivative instruments and forwards on any eligible underlying, such as currencies, interest rates, transferable securities or financial indices, at all times in compliance with the Grand Ducal Regulation.

In addition to the above, the Sub-Fund may use deposits and cash borrowings according to the "Investments Restrictions" in order to optimize its cash management.

If the Management Company considers this to be in the best interest of the Unitholders, and notably for defensive purposes, the Sub-Fund may also, hold, up to 100% of its net assets, liquidities such as (but not limited to) cash deposits and money market funds.

According to the Investment Policy above and the non-intensive use of derivate instruments, the Sub-Fund employs the Commitment Approach as the global exposure determination methodology. The aforementioned investment strategy corresponds for the investors with a medium investment risk profile.

Recommendation: this Sub-Fund may not be appropriate for investors who plan to withdraw their money within a three year period.

Reference Currency	Euro
Investment Manager	Dux Inversores SGIIC, S.A.
Valuation Day	Once a week, on each Tuesday. If such day is not a Business Day in Luxembourg or falls within a period of suspension of determination of Net Asset Value, as described in the Section "Determination of the Net Asset Value of Units", then the valuation day will be the following Business Day.
Classes of Units	Class A: reserved for retail and institutional investors denominated in Euro
Categories of Units	Class A: accumulation of income
Initial Subscription Day/Period Initial Price	The initial subscription period will be from 7 January 2013 to 16 January 2013. The Net Asset Value will be calculated for the first time on the 16 January 2013 (the Launch Date). If no subscription has been received on the initial subscription period, the launch date will be the next Business Day on which the first subscriptions for the Sub-Fund will have been accepted at the initial price. The Management Company at its own discretion may establish an extension of the initial subscription period and/or a change of the launch date Class A: EUR 10
Minimum Initial Investment	Class A: EUR 10
Minimum Subsequent Investment	Class A: EUR 10
Subscription, redemption and conversion deadline	11 a.m. Luxembourg time, one (1) Business Day prior to the applicable Valuation Day. Applications received by the registrar and transfer agent after this time will be deemed to have been received on the following Business Day. Subscription monies are due to be paid two (2) Business Days following the Valuation Day. Redemption monies are due to be paid three (3) Business Days following the Valuation Day.

Subscription Commission	None
Redemption Commission	None
Conversion Commission	None
Investment Management Fee	Class A: 0.50%
Management Fee	Class A: 0.08%
The maximum level of management fees that may be charged to both the Sub-Fund and to the UCITS and/or UCI in which it invests will be 4%, it being understood that this percentage shall be disclosed in the annual report of the Fund (and the	
Prospectus, following art. 46.3 of Law of 2010).	
Investors should note that rebates or retrocession paid by the underlying UCIT and/or UCIS shall be for the benefit of the Sub-Fund.	

INCOMETRIC FUND - EQUAM GLOBAL VALUE

Investment Objective

The Investment Objective of the Sub-Fund is to achieve mid-term capital appreciation. The Sub-Fund seeks to accomplish this objective through investing primarily in equity and fixed income mainly issued in OECD countries.

The Sub-Fund will be managed following a total return strategy. The portfolio allocation will be based on microeconomic and macroeconomic environment indicators to identify investment opportunities. The Sub-Fund is expected to obtain the majority of the return from equities. However, investments in fixed income securities and other assets classes will also be employed to diversify the sources of return and risk.

The Sub-Fund will be mainly invested in equities, equity-linked instruments (including but not limited to ordinary or preferred shares, convertibles bonds) and in bonds (including but not limited to fixed-rate or floating securities, zero-coupon bonds and treasury bonds) and money market instruments issued or dealt on the Eurozone and other international regulated markets.

On ancillary basis the Sub-Fund may achieve also its investment objective indirectly, by investing through UCIs/UCITS, including ETFs. Nevertheless, the Sub-Fund will not invest more than 10% of its net assets in ETFs or other investment funds.

For hedging and on ancillary basis for investment purposes, the Sub-Fund may use financial derivative instruments products traded on a regulated market and/or over the counter (OTC), provided they are contracted with first class financial institutions specialized in this type of transactions. In particular, the Sub-Fund may take exposure through financial derivative instruments and forwards on any eligible underlying, such as currencies, interest rates, transferable securities or financial indices, at all times in compliance with the Grand Ducal Regulation.

In addition to the above, the Sub-Fund may use deposits and cash borrowings according to the "Investments Restrictions" in order to optimize its cash management.

If the Management Company considers this to be in the best interest of the Unitholders, and notably for defensive purposes, the Sub-Fund may also, hold, up to 100% of its net assets, liquidities such as (but not limited to) cash deposits and money market funds.

According to the Investment Policy above and the non-intensive use of derivate instruments, the Sub-Fund employs the Commitment Approach as the global exposure determination methodology. The aforementioned investment strategy corresponds for the investors with a high investment risk profile.

Performance Fee Mechanism

The performance fee is calculated in respect of each performance period. A performance period is a quarter. The first performance period for a Sub-Fund begins on the last day of the Initial Subscription Period and ends on the last day of the relevant quarter. The performance fee will be calculated separately per Class of Units.

The performance fee is payable quarterly as at the end of a performance period. The percentage of the performance fee in respect of any Class of Units is indicated below. The performance fee in respect of the Sub-Fund will be paid if the net asset value per Unit as at the end of performance period exceeds the High Watermark. The High Watermark is greatest of (i) the highest net asset value per Unit at the end of any performance period where performance fees have been paid of each respective Class since inception; and (ii) the Initial Subscription Price.

These two conditions will only be binding during a three year period. If during a period of three years no performance fee has been paid, the high water mark will be defined as the NAV per Unit of the last day of the quarter following the third year without performance fee having been paid. Thereafter, the high water mark will be defined as the greater of the two figures above, taking into account that the NAV per Unit of the end of the calendar quarter following such third year will be the initial NAV per Unit. An accrual in respect of the performance fee will be made on each Valuation Date if conditions (i) and (ii) referred to in the previous paragraph are met. If either of the conditions is not met, no accrual will be made.

The performance fee is calculated on the basis of the Net Asset Value per Unit after deducting all expenses, fees (but not the performance fee) and adjusting for subscriptions, redemptions and distributions during the relevant performance period so that these will not affect the performance fee payable.

In the event that an investor redeems Units prior to the end of the performance period, any accrued but unpaid performance fee relating to those Units shall be paid to the Investment Manager at the last Valuation Day of the relevant quarter.

Reference Currency	Euro
Investment Manager	Adepa Asset Management SA
Investment Advisor	The Investment Manager has agreed to receive investment advice from ALPS Investment Advisors EAFI S.L. with registered address at c/Serrano 78 3° Izquierda, 28006 Madrid (Spain).
Valuation Day	Once a week, on each Thursday. If such day is not a Business Day in Luxembourg or falls within a period of suspension of determination of Net Asset Value, as described in the Section "Determination of the Net Asset Value of Units", then the valuation day will be the following Business Day.

	Class A: reserved for retail and institutional investors
Classes of Units	denominated in Euro.
	Class B: reserved for retail and institutional investors and
	denominated in Euro.
	Class A: accumulation of income
Categories of Units	Class B: accumulation of income
	The initial subscription period will be from 5 th January
	2015 to 14 th January 2015. The Net Asset Value will be calculated for the first time on the 15 th January 2015 (the
	Launch Date).
	If no subscription has been received on the initial
Initial Subscription Day/Period	subscription period, the launch date will be the next
	Business Day on which the first subscriptions for the Sub-
	Fund will have been accepted at the initial price. The
	Management Company at its own discretion may establish an extension of the initial subscription period and/or a
	change of the launch date.
	Class A: EUR 100
Initial Price	
	Class B: EUR 100
Minimum Initial Investment	Class A: EUR 5,000
William Imuai investment	Class B: EUR 100
Minimum Subsequent	Class A: EUR 1,000
Investment	Class B: EUR 100
	11 a.m. Luxembourg time, one (1) Business Day prior to
	the applicable Valuation Day. Applications received by
	the registrar and transfer agent after this time will be
	deemed to have been received on the following Business
Subscription, redemption and	Day.
conversion deadline	Subscription monies are due to be paid two (2) Business
	Days following the Valuation Day.
	Redemption monies are due to be paid three (3) Business
	Days following the Valuation Day.
Subscription Commission	None
Redemption Commission	None

Conversion Commission	None
Investment Management Fee	Class A: 1 % Class B: 1.70 % Such fees are accrued on each Valuation Day and payable monthly in arrears. The management fees may be applied or may be waived, in whole or in part, at the discretion of the Management Company.
Investment Advisory Fee	According to the Investment Advisory Agreement: Class A: 0.96% of the Sub-Fund's total net assets deducting EUR 10.000 and (if any) also deducting payments to intermediaries out of the 1% of the management fees paid to the Investment Manager. Class B: 1.66% of the Sub-Fund's total net assets deducting EUR 10.000 and (if any) also deducting payments to intermediaries out of the 1,70% of the management fees paid to the Investment Manager.
Performance Fee	Class A: 10% Class B: None The Performance Fee will be allocated between the Management Company and the Investment Advisor for 10% and 90% respectively. The Performance Fee may be applied or may be waived, in whole or in part, at the discretion of the Management Company.

INCOMETRIC FUND - VENTURA

Investment objective and policy

The Sub-Fund's investment objective is to achieve an average yearly return, above Benchmark, in its Reference Currency by investing in securities following exchange patterns, i.e Exchange Traded Funds (ETFs), Exchange Traded Commodities (ETCs) and Exchange Traded Notes (ETNs), all in accordance with Section "Investment Restrictions", referred to markets and industries that might be classified as "emerging countries".

The definition of emerging countries includes those countries that at the time of the investment are identified as "developing" either by the International Monetary Fund (IMF), the World Bank (WB), the International Financial Corporation (IFC) or by one large commercial bank.

As a non-exhaustive example emerging countries includes: Mexico, Hong Kong, Singapore, Turkey, Poland, Czech Republic, Hungary, Israel, South Africa, Chile, Slovak, Brazil, Philippines, Argentina, Thailand, South Korea, Colombia, Taiwan, Indonesia, India, China, Romania, Ukraine, Malaysia, Croatia, Russia.

The Sub-Fund will as well invest in equity securities of companies whose activity is mainly oriented to countries that from time to time can be classifiable as "emerging countries".

The Sub-Fund's investment universe covers a wide range of asset classes, including fixed income and equities on a global basis.

The investment strategy is based on macroeconomic and fundamental analysis, focused on the single geographic unit, market, and/or industrial sector.

The established Benchmark for the Sub-Fund is 150 bps + EURO area's inflation.

The use of derivate instruments is not foreseen.

The use of the financial leverage is not foreseen.

If the Management Company considers this to be in the best interest of the Unitholders, and notably for defensive purposes, the Sub-Fund may also, hold, up to 100% of its net assets, liquidities such as (but not limited to) cash deposits and money market funds.

This is a Sub-Fund investing in global emerging markets. Whilst the growth potential of global emerging markets make this Sub-Fund very attractive for investors looking for high investment returns, investors in this Sub-Fund need to be comfortable with the additional political and economic risks associated with emerging market investments. The Sub-Fund may, therefore, be suitable for investors who already have a globally diversified portfolio and now want to expand into riskier assets in order to potentially boost returns. Because emerging stock markets are very volatile, investors should also have at least a five year investment horizon.

Performance Fee Mechanism

The performance fee is calculated in respect of each performance period. A performance period is the period from 1st January to 31st December in any year. The first performance period for the Sub-Fund begins on the last day of the initial offer period and ends on the following 31st December.

The performance fee is payable annually in arrears as at the end of a performance period. The performance fee in respect of the Sub-Fund will be paid if the Net Asset Value per Unit as at the end of performance period exceeds the High Watermark and Hurdle Rate as defined below.

The High Watermark is the greatest of (i) the highest Net Asset Value per Unit at the end of any previous Performance Period on which a Performance Fee was paid; and (ii) the Initial Subscription Price.

The Hurdle Rate is the synthetic index composed as 75% MXEF (MSCI Emerging Markets Index Fund), 15% JPGCCOMP (JP Morgan Emerging Markets Bond Index Global Diversified) and 10% JPCAEU6M (JP Morgan Euro Cash 6 Month).

An accrual in respect of performance fee will be made on each Valuation Date if conditions (i) and (ii) referred to in the previous paragraph are met. For this purpose, those conditions will be assessed by reference to the performance of the Net Asset Value per Unit of the Sub-Fund over the part of the performance period up to the Valuation Date. If either of the conditions is not met, no accrual will be made.

The performance fee is calculated on the basis of Net Asset Value after deducting all expenses, the management fee (but not the performance fee) and adjusting for the accumulated subscriptions and redemptions since inception so that these will not affect the performance fee payable.

In the event that an investor redeems Units prior to the end of the financial year, any accrued but unpaid performance fee relating to those Units shall be paid to the Management Company and the Investment Advisor at the last Valuation Day of the relevant quarter.

In case of subscription, the performance fee calculation is adjusted to avoid that this subscription impacts the amount of performance fee accruals. To perform this adjustment, the performance of the Net Asset Value per Unit against the Hurdle Rate until the subscription date is not taken into account in the performance fee calculation. This adjustment amount is equal to the product of the number of subscribed Units by the positive difference between the dealing price and the Hurdle rate at the date of the subscription. This cumulated adjustment amount is used in the performance fee calculation until the end of the relevant period and is adjusted in case of subsequent redemptions during the period.

If the Investment Advisor Agreement with an Investment Advisor entitled to a performance fee is terminated before the end of any performance period, the performance fee in respect of such performance period will be calculated and paid as if the date of termination was the end of the relevant performance period.

Reference Currency	Euro

	Rooms 401 and 402 – Fourth Floor
	Rooms 401 and 402 = Fourth Floor
Investment Advisor	63, Grosvenor Street
	London
	W1K3JG
Valuation Day	Once a week, on each Tuesday. If such day is not a Business Day in Luxembourg or falls within a period of suspension of determination of the Net Asset Value, as described in the Section "Determination of the Net Asset Value of Units", then the valuation day will be the following Business Day.
Classes of Units	Class A: reserved for retail and institutional investors denominated in Euro
Categories of Units	Class A: accumulation of income
Initial Subscription Day/Period	The initial subscription period will be from 18 th June 2013 to 9 th July 2013. The Net Asset Value will be calculated for the first time on the 9 th July 2013 (the Launch Date). If no subscription has been received on the initial subscription period, the launch date will be the next Business Day on which the first subscriptions for the Sub-Fund will have been accepted at the initial price. The Management Company at its own discretion may establish an extension of the initial subscription period and/or a change of the launch date
Initial Price	Class A: EUR 100
Minimum Initial Investment	Class A: EUR 100
Minimum Subsequent Investment	Class A: EUR 100
Subscription, redemption and conversion deadline	11 a.m. Luxembourg time, one (1) Business Day prior to the applicable Valuation Day. Applications received by the registrar and transfer agent after this time will be deemed to have been received on the following Business Day. Subscription monies are due to be paid two (2) Business

Days following the Valuation Day.
Redemption monies are due to be paid three (3) Business
Days following the Valuation Day.
None
None
None
Class A: 0.30%
Class A: 1.20%
Class A: 25%
The Performance Fee will be allocated between the
Management Company and the Investment Advisor for 10% and 90% respectively.

INCOMETRIC FUND – DUX FLEXIBLE GLOBAL

Investment objective and policy

The Investment Objective of the Sub-Fund is to achieve mid-term capital appreciation. The Sub-Fund aims at capturing superior risk-adjusted returns over full market cycles by identifying potential opportunities and minimizing exposure to potential losses. The Sub-Fund blends top-down asset and sector allocation and bottom-up credit selection to analyse both markets as well as the expectations of other market participants. The Sub-Fund seeks to accomplish this objective through investing primarily in equity and fixed income.

The Sub-Fund will be managed following a total return strategy and expects to outperform any market condition. However, bullish markets will provide a better return opportunity. The portfolio allocation will be based on microeconomic and macroeconomic environment indicators to identify investment opportunities. The Sub-Fund is expected to obtain the majority of the return from equities and fixed income. However, investments in other assets classes will also be employed to diversify the sources of return and risk.

The Sub-Fund will be mainly invested in equities, equity-linked instruments (including but not limited to ordinary or preferred shares, convertibles bonds) and in bonds (including but not limited to fixed-rate or floating securities, zero-coupon bonds and treasury bonds), money market instruments issued or dealt on the Eurozone and other international regulated markets and deposits.

On ancillary basis the Sub-Fund may achieve also its investment objective indirectly, by investing through UCIs/UCITS, including ETFs.

For hedging and for investment purposes, the Sub-Fund may use financial derivative instruments products traded on a regulated market and/or over the counter (OTC), provided they are contracted with first class financial institutions specialized in this type of transactions. In particular, the Sub-Fund may take exposure through financial derivative instruments and forwards on any eligible underlying, such as currencies, interest rates, transferable securities or financial indices, at all times in compliance with the Grand Ducal Regulation.

In addition to the above, the Sub-Fund may use deposits and cash borrowings according to the "Investments Restrictions" in order to optimize its cash management.

If the Management Company considers this to be in the best interest of the Unitholders, and notably for defensive purposes, the Sub-Fund may also, hold, up to 100% of its net assets, liquidities such as (but not limited to) cash deposits and money market funds.

According to the Investment Policy above and the non-intensive use of derivate instruments, the Sub-Fund employs the commitment approach as the global exposure determination methodology. The aforementioned investment strategy corresponds for the investors with a high

investment risk profile. The Sub-Fund has no capital guarantee and assumes high risk when investing in securities, thus, potential gains or losses may be significant. The risk category is neither a target nor a guarantee and may shift over time.

Recommendation: this Sub-Fund may not be appropriate for investors who plan to withdraw their money within a three year period.

Investment Manager	Dux Inversores SGIIC, S.A.
Reference Currency	EUR
Valuation Day	Once a week, on each Tuesday. If such day is not a Business Day in Luxembourg or falls within a period of suspension of determination of Net Asset Value, as described in the Section "Determination of the Net Asset Value of Units", then the valuation day will be the following Business Day.
Classes of Units	Class A: reserved for retail and institutional investors denominated in EUR
Categories of Units	Class A: accumulation of income
Initial Subscription Day/Period	The initial subscription period will be from 28 th January 2014 to 4 th February 2014. The Net Asset Value will be calculated for the first time on the 4 th February 2014 (the Launch Date). If no subscription has been received on the initial subscription period, the launch date will be the next Business Day on which the first subscriptions for the Sub-Fund will have been accepted at the initial price. The Management Company at its own discretion may establish an extension of the initial subscription period and/or a change of the launch date
Initial Price	Class A: EUR 10.00
Minimum Initial Investment	Class A: EUR 10.00
Minimum Subsequent Investment	Class A: EUR 10.00
Subscription, redemption and conversion deadline	11 a.m. Luxembourg time, one (1) Business Day prior to the applicable Valuation Day. Applications received by the registrar and transfer agent after this time will be deemed to have been received on the following Business Day.

	Subscription monies are due to be paid two (2) Business Days following the Valuation Day.
	Redemption monies are due to be paid three (3) Business Days following the Valuation Day.
Subscription Commission	None
Redemption Commission	None
Conversion Commission	None
Investment Management Fee	Class A: the Investment Manager is entitled to an Investment Management Fee up to 0.90% out of the net assets of the Sub-Fund.
Management Fee*	Class A: 0.08%

^{*} The maximum level of management fees that may be charged to both the Sub-Fund and to the UCITS and/or UCI in which it invests will be 4%, it being understood that this percentage shall be disclosed in the annual report of the Fund (and the Prospectus, following art. 46.3 of Law of 2010).

Investors should note that rebates or retrocession paid by the underlying UCIT and/or UCIs shall be for the benefit of the Sub-Fund.

INCOMETRIC FUND – MAYA ABSOLUTE RETURN

Investment objective and policy

The Investment Objective of the Sub-Fund is to achieve long-term capital appreciation and absolute returns. The Sub-Fund seeks to accomplish this investment objective by investing in equity-linked instruments (including but not limited to ordinary or preferred shares, convertibles bonds), securities predominantly equities listed on major stock exchanges, Exchange Traded Funds (ETFs) and other UCIs/UCITS funds, bonds (including but not limited to fixed-rate or floating securities, zero-coupon bonds and treasury bonds) and money market instruments issued or dealt in the Eurozone and other international regulated markets. The Sub-Fund will not have any bias towards any country or region. Investments in other assets classes might also be employed to diversify the sources of return and risk.

The Sub-Fund will be managed in order to deliver absolute and higher risk-adjusted returns than relevant equity market indices such as FTSE 100 and S&P 500 over a rolling three-year basis.

For hedging and for investment purposes, the Sub-Fund may use financial derivative instruments traded on a regulated market and/or over the counter (OTC), provided they are contracted with first class financial institutions specialized in this type of transactions. In particular, the Sub-Fund will take exposure through any financial derivative instrument, such as but not limited to warrants, futures, options, swaps (including but not limited to total return swaps, contracts for difference, credit default swaps) and forwards on currencies (including non-delivery forwards), interest rates, Transferable Securities, a diversified basket of Transferable Securities, financial indices (in compliance with the article 9 of the Grand Ducal Regulation dated 8th February 2008 and with ESMA guidelines criteria) and UCIs/UCITS, at all times within the limits specified in the Appendix II.

In addition to the above, the Sub-Fund may use deposits and cash borrowings according to the "Investments Restrictions" in order to optimize its cash management. There can be no assurance that the Sub-Fund will achieve its investment objective in respect to the Portfolio. If the Management Company considers this to be in the best interest of the Unitholders, and notably for defensive purposes, the Sub-Fund may also, hold, up to 100% of its net assets, in liquid instruments such as (but not limited to) cash deposits and money market funds.

Other than as specified under "Investment Restrictions", there are no restrictions or limitations on the transactions which may be undertaken in respect of the Sub-Fund, the securities and other derivative instruments which may be utilized or the level of borrowing, leverage or other exposures which may be utilized and/or incurred in connection with the investment objective and policy of the Sub-Fund.

The calculation methodology for the global exposure is the Value-at-Risk (VaR) approach.

Performance Fee Calculation

The performance fee is payable quarterly in arrears and is calculated and accrued on each Valuation Day on the basis of the Net Asset Value of the relevant Sub-Fund(s) or Class(es) thereof, as further mentioned below, as follows:

The performance fee is calculated on the basis of the Net Asset Value of the relevant Sub-Fund(s) or Class(es) thereof, before accrual of the performance fee, adjusted to take account of all subscriptions and redemptions. For the avoidance of doubt, for the purpose of this calculation, the Net Asset Value of the relevant Sub-Fund(s) or Class(es) thereof shall take into account all expenses, liabilities and applicable fees referred to in this Appendix II of the Prospectus, except for performance fee accruals, if any.

The performance fee is equal to the outperformance of the Net Asset Value per Unit of each relevant Class multiplied by the number of Units in circulation in such Class during the calculation period. No performance fee will be due if the Net Asset Value per Unit before performance fee turns out to be below the high water mark for the calculation period in question.

The high water mark is defined as the greater of the following two figures:

- the last highest Net Asset Value per Unit on which a performance fee has been paid;
- the initial Net Asset Value per Unit.

Notwithstanding the above, these two figures will only be binding during three years as from the launch date of the relevant Sub-Fund(s) or Class(es) thereof. If during a three year period no performance fee has been paid, the high water mark will be defined as the Net Asset Value per Unit of the last day of the third year from the date the last performance fee has been paid or from the inception of the Sub-Fund if no performance fee was paid during the first three years from its inception. Thereafter, the high water mark will be defined as the greater of the two figures above, but the Net Asset Value per Unit of the last day of the third year from the date the last performance fee has been paid will replace the initial Net Asset Value and any previous last highest Net Asset Value per Unit on which a performance fee has been paid, if any, will not be taken into consideration.

Provision will be made for this performance fee on each Valuation Day. If the Net Asset Value per Unit decreases during the calculation period, the provisions made in respect of the performance fee will be reduced accordingly. If these provisions fall to zero, no performance fee will be payable.

If Units are redeemed on a date other than that on which a performance fee is paid while provision has been made for performance fees, the performance fees for which provision has been made and which are attributable to the Units redeemed will be paid at the end of the period even if provision for performance fees is no longer made at that date. Gains which have not been realized may be taken into account in the calculation and payment of performance fees.

In case of subscription, the performance fee calculation is adjusted to avoid that this subscription impacts the amount of performance fee accruals. To perform this adjustment, the performance of the Net Asset Value per Unit against the high watermark until the subscription date is not taken into account in the performance fee calculation. This adjustment amount is equal to the product of the number of subscribed Units by the positive difference between the dealing price and the

high watermark at the date of the subscription. This cumulated adjustment amount is used in the performance fee calculation until the end of the relevant period and is adjusted in case of subsequent redemptions during the period. Performance fees are payable within 15 Business Days following the quarter end.	
Investment Manager	Sturgeon Ventures LLP with registered address at Linstead House, 2 nd Floor, 9 Disraeli Road, London SW15 2DR (United Kingdom) has been appointed as Investment Manager by the Management Company. The Investment Manager has agreed to receive investment advice from Schulenburg Capital Ltd. in relation to the Sub-Fund. Sturgeon Ventures LLP has agreed to pay an advisory fee to Schulenburg Capital Ltd.
Reference Currency	GBP
Valuation Day	Daily. If such day is not a Business Day in Luxembourg or falls within a period of suspension of determination of Net Asset Value, as described in the Section "Determination of the Net Asset Value of Units", then the Valuation Day will be the following Business Day.
Classes of Units	Class A: reserved for retail and institutional investors denominated in GBP. Class B: reserved for retail and institutional investors denominated in USD. Class C: reserved for retail and institutional investors denominated in EUR.
Categories of Units	Classes A, B and C: accumulation of income.
Initial Subscription Day/Period	The initial subscription period will be from 5th January 2015 to 14th January 2015. The Net Asset Value will be calculated for the first time on the 15th January 2015 (the Launch Date). If no subscription has been received on the initial subscription period, the launch date will be the next Business Day on which the first subscriptions for the Sub-Fund will have been accepted at the initial price. The Management Company at its own discretion may establish an extension of the initial subscription period and/or a charge of the launch date.
	and/or a change of the launch date.
Initial Price	Class A: 100.00 GBP. Class B: 100.00 USD.

	Class C: 100.00 EUR.
	Class A: GBP 10,000
Minimum Initial Investment	
	Class B: USD 10,000
	Class C: EUR 10,000
Minimum Subsequent	Class A : GBP 10,000
Minimum Subsequent Investment	Class B : USD 10,000
	Class C : EUR 10,000
Subscription, redemption and conversion deadline	Subscriptions: 10 a.m. Luxembourg time, one (1) Business Day prior to the applicable Valuation Day.
	Redemptions/Conversions: 10 a.m. Luxembourg time, three (3) Business Days prior to the applicable Valuation Day.
	Subscription monies are due to be paid two (2) Business Days following the Valuation Day. The Sub-Fund intends to normally pay redemption/conversion proceeds (less any tax or duty imposed on the redemption of the Shares) within three (3) Business Days following the relevant Valuation Day.
Subscription Commission	Classes A, B and C: Up to 1.00% out of the Sub-Fund's net assets.
	The Subscription Commission may be applied or may be waived, in whole or in part, at the discretion of the relevant Distributor and/or Management Company.
	The Subscription Commission (if any) will be paid to the Management Company and/or other intermediaries involved in the distribution of Units.
Redemption Commission	Classes A, B and C: Up to 1.00% out of the Sub-Fund's net assets.
	The Redemption Commission may be applied or may be waived, in whole or in part, at the discretion of the Management Company.
	The Redemption Commission (if any) will be paid to the Investment Manager.
Conversion Commission	None.

	Classes A, B and C:
Management Fee*	- Fee of 0.20% out of the Sub-Fund's net assets when assets range from 0 to 15,000,000 EUR.
	- Fee of 0.15% out of the Sub-Fund's net assets when assets range from 15,000,000 EUR to 100,000,000 EUR.
	- Fee of 0.10% out of the Sub-Fund's net assets when assets are above of 100,000,000 EUR.
	The fees will be paid to ADEPA ASSET MANAGEMENT, S.A. with a minimum of EUR 20,000 per year.
	Such fees are accrued on each Valuation Day and payable monthly in arrears.
	Classes A, B and C: 1.00% out of the Sub-Fund's net assets.
Investment Management Fee	This fee will be paid to STURGEON VENTURES LLP. Such fees are accrued on each Valuation Day and payable monthly in arrears.
Performance Fee	Classes A, B and C: 10.00%.
	The Performance Fee will be paid to STURGEON VENTURES LLP. Such fee will be accrued on each Valuation Day and payable quarterly in arrears.

^{*} The maximum level of management fees that may be charged to both the Sub-Fund and to the UCITS and/or UCI in which it invests will be 4%, it being understood that this percentage shall be disclosed in the annual report of the Fund (and the Prospectus, following art. 46.3 of Law of 2010). Investors should note that rebates or retrocession paid by the underlying UCIT and/or UCIs shall be for the benefit of the Sub-Fund.